United States SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549



QUARTERLY REPORT

Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 For the Quarterly Period Ended

September 30, 2015

Commission File Number 1-12984



Eagle Materials Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

75-2520779

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

3811 Turtle Creek Blvd., Suite 1100, Dallas, Texas 75219

(Address of principal executive offices)

(214) 432-2000

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes 🗵 No 🗆

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).

Yes \boxtimes No \square

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See definition of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Accelerated filer

Smaller reporting company

Large accelerated filer

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.)

Yes 🗆 No 🗵

As of October 27, 2015, the number of outstanding shares of common stock was:

 \mathbf{X}

Class	Outstanding Shares
Common Stock, \$.01 Par Value	50,046,652

Eagle Materials Inc. and Subsidiaries Form 10-Q September 30, 2015

Table of Contents

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION (unaudited)

Item 1.	Consolidated Financial Statements	Page
	Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the Three and Six Months Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014	1
	Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings for the Three and Six Months Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014	2
	Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2015 and March 31, 2015	3
	Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Six Months Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014	4
	Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements	5
Item 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition	23
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	39
Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	39
	PART II. OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1.	Legal Proceedings	40
Item 1a.	Risk Factors	41
Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	49
Item 4.	Mine Safety Information	49
Item 6.	Exhibits	50
<u>SIGNATU</u>	IRES	51

Eagle Materials Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statements of Earnings (dollars in thousands, except share data) (unaudited)

	For the Three Months Ended September 30,			For the Six Months Ended September 30,				
		2015		2014		2015		2014
Revenues	\$	328,988	\$	284,808	\$	613,951	\$	551,059
Cost of Goods Sold		284,694		209,747		508,560		419,597
Gross Profit		44,294		75,061		105,391		131,462
Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Joint Venture		11,680		12,051		19,510		21,851
Corporate General and Administrative		(9,364)		(7,414)		(18,355)		(14,456)
Acquisition and Litigation Expense		-		(2,103)		-		(2,103)
Other Income		572		883		1,007		1,562
Interest Expense, Net		(4,342)		(3,901)		(8,828)		(7,953)
Earnings Before Income Taxes		42,840		74,577		98,725		130,363
Income Tax Expense		(13,021)		(24,258)		(31,144)		(42,334)
Net Earnings	\$	29,819	\$	50,319	\$	67,581	\$	88,029
EARNINGS PER SHARE:								
Basic	\$	0.60	\$	1.01	\$	1.36	\$	1.78
Diluted	\$	0.59	\$	1.00	\$	1.34	\$	1.75
AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING:								
Basic		49,828,189		49,591,495		49,797,972		49,546,916
Diluted		50,470,151		50,427,286	_	50,460,947		50,357,914
CASH DIVIDENDS PER SHARE:	\$	0.10	\$	0.10	\$	0.20	\$	0.20

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.



Eagle Materials Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings (unaudited – dollars in thousands)

	 For the Three Months Ended September 30,			For the Six M Ended Septem				
	2015		2014		2015		2014	
Net Earnings	\$ 29,819	\$	50,319	\$	67,581	\$	88,029	
Change in Funded Status of Defined Benefit Plans:								
Amortization of Net Actuarial Loss	508		163		1,016		326	
Tax Expense	 (188)		(57)		(376)		(114)	
Comprehensive Earnings	\$ 30,139	\$	50,425	\$	68,221	\$	88,241	

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Eagle Materials Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets (dollars in thousands)

	S	eptember 30, 2015 (unaudited)		March 31, 2015
ASSETS		(unautited)		
Current Assets -				
Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$	6,348	\$	7,514
Accounts and Notes Receivable		154,959		113,577
Inventories		224,667		235,464
Prepaid and Other Assets		9,026		10,080
Total Current Assets		395,000		366,635
Property, Plant and Equipment -		2,041,242		1,962,215
Less: Accumulated Depreciation		(779,010)		(740,396)
Property, Plant and Equipment, net		1,262,232		1,221,819
Notes Receivable		2,760		2,847
Investment in Joint Venture		49,883		47,614
Goodwill and Intangible Assets		177,069		211,167
Other Assets		33,306		32,509
	\$	1,920,250	\$	1,882,591
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY				
Current Liabilities -				
Accounts Payable	\$	70,584	\$	77,749
Accrued Liabilities		50,066		46,830
Income Taxes Payable		5,108		2,952
Current Portion of Long-term Debt		57,045		57,045
Total Current Liabilities		182,803		184,576
Long-term Debt		452,714		455,714
Other Long-term Liabilities		70,425		69,055
Deferred Income Taxes		144,617		162,653
Total Liabilities		850,559	_	871,998
Stockholders' Equity -				
Preferred Stock, Par Value \$0.01; Authorized 5,000,000 Shares; None Issued		-		-
Common Stock, Par Value \$0.01; Authorized 100,000,000 Shares; Issued and Outstanding 50,286,652 and				
50,245,364 Shares, respectively		503		502
Capital in Excess of Par Value		273,372		272,441
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Losses		(11,428)		(12,067)
Retained Earnings		807,244		749,717
Total Stockholders' Equity		1,069,691		1,010,593
	\$	1,920,250	\$	1,882,591

See notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Eagle Materials Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited – dollars in thousands)

For the Six Months Ended September 30, 2015 2014 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES \$ 67,581 88,029 Net Earnings \$ Adjustments to Reconcile Net Earnings to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities -Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization 49,034 34,864 Impairment of Intangible Assets 28,354 (18,413) Deferred Income Tax Provision (3,628)Stock Compensation Expense 8,330 6,702 Excess Tax Benefits from Share Based Payment Arrangements (2,494)(3, 195)Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Joint Venture (19, 510)(21, 851)Distributions from Joint Venture 17,250 19,375 Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities: Accounts and Notes Receivable (29, 809)(39, 379)Inventories 13,188 (3,615)Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (1,536)16.878 Other Assets 534 2,798 Income Taxes Payable 4,650 11,103 Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 107,589 117,651 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Property, Plant and Equipment Additions (55, 869)(40,039)Acquisition Spending (32,427) Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (88,296) (40,039)CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (3,000)(69,000)**Repayment of Credit Facility** Dividends Paid to Stockholders (10,061)(10,019)Shares Redeemed to Settle Employee Taxes on Stock Compensation (1,728)(1, 299)Purchase and Retirement of Common Stock (10,744)Proceeds from Stock Option Exercises 2,580 4,092 2,494 Excess Tax Benefits from Share Based Payment Arrangements 3,195 Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (20,459) (73,031) NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,581 (1, 166)CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 6,482 7,514 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD \$ 6,348 \$ 11,063

See notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Eagle Materials Inc. and Subsidiaries Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements September 30, 2015

(A) BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements as of and for the three and six month periods ended September 30, 2015 include the accounts of Eagle Materials Inc. and its majority-owned subsidiaries (the "Company", "us" or "we") and have been prepared by the Company, without audit, pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. These unaudited consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 22, 2015.

Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations, although we believe that the disclosures are adequate to make the information presented not misleading. In our opinion, all adjustments (consisting solely of normal recurring adjustments) necessary to present fairly the information in the following unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company have been included. The results of operations for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results for the full year.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers." ASU 2014-09 supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in "Revenue Recognition (Topic 605)," and requires entities to recognize revenue in a way that depicts the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. In July 2015, the FASB delayed the implementation of this standard by one year. The standard will now be effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal 2019, with early adoption not permitted. There are two transition methods available under the new standard, either modified or full retrospective. We are currently evaluating the impact of this ASU and have not yet selected a transition method.

In April 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU 2015-03, "Interest-Imputation of Interest" (Subtopic 830-30). This Standard requires that discounts, premiums or debt issue costs related to borrowings be reported in the balance sheet as a direct reduction of the associated borrowing. The standard will be effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal 2017, and earlier application is permitted for financial statements that have not been previously issued. This impact of adopting this ASU is not expected to be material.

(B) GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill: We perform our annual test of impairment on goodwill during the fourth quarter of our fiscal year. If business conditions in the operating units containing goodwill change substantially during the fiscal year, and we are unable to conclude that an impairment loss is not likely to occur, we will perform impairment tests for those business units during our quarterly periods. At September 30, 2015, we determined that impairment losses are not likely to occur; therefore, no impairment tests were performed during the quarter.

Intangible Assets: Intangible assets are currently being amortized over their expected lives. During the three months ended September 30, 2015, the continued decline in oil prices during the summer of 2015 adversely impacted oil and gas drilling activity, leading to further reductions in demand and pricing for proppants. This reduction in demand adversely impacted performance under our customer contracts, resulting in the amendment of certain of these contracts. Based on the reduced demand for proppants and the executed and pending amendments to our customer contracts, we concluded that long-lived asset impairment indicators were present during the quarter ended September 30, 2015 for our customer contract intangible assets. We performed a recovery test to determine if any of the customer contract intangible assets related to our oil and gas proppants business unit were impaired at September 30, 2015. Based on our analysis of the undiscounted cash flows for each of our customer contract intangibles related to our oil and gas proppants business, we concluded that the carrying value of certain customer contract intangible assets exceeded the undiscounted cash flows for the related assets. For those contracts whose carrying value exceeded the undiscounted cash flows, we calculated the fair value of each contract using the weighted-average probable cash flows related to each contract (level 3 inputs), discounted using a weighted-average cost of capital ("WACC"). The WACC was determined from relevant market comparisons, and adjusted for specific risks. This analysis resulted in an impairment loss of approximately \$28.4 million, which is included in cost of goods sold in the unaudited Consolidated Statement of Earnings for the three and six months ended September 30, 2015.

Intangible assets, including the impact of the impairment charge discussed above, consist of the following:

	S	Cost at eptember 30, 2015	:	Amortization for Six Months ended September 30, 2015		Impairment	Accumulated Amortization	Net
					(dol	lars in thousands)		
Goodwill and Intangible Assets:								
Customer Contracts and Relationships	\$	63,260	\$	7,656	\$	28,354	\$ (42,004)	\$ 21,256
Sales Contracts		2,500		312		-	(1,770)	\$ 730
Permits		27,440		346		-	(6,242)	\$ 21,198
Goodwill		133,885		-		-	-	\$ 133,885
Total Goodwill and Intangible Assets	\$	227,085	\$	8,314	\$	28,354	\$ (50,016)	\$ 177,069

At September 30, 2015, approximately \$16.2 million of Customer Contracts and Relationships was related to our oil and gas proppants business. Under the terms of one of the customer contracts, the customer prepaid \$15.0 million for sand. At September 30, 2015, approximately \$12.5 million of this prepaid is still available to the customer.

		March 31, 2015						
	Amortization Period	Cost			Accumulated Amortization		Net	
			(dollars in	thousan	lds)			
Goodwill and Intangible Assets:								
Customer contracts and relationships	5-15 years	\$	62,060	\$	(5,994)	\$	56,066	
Sales contracts	4 years		2,500		(1,458)		1,042	
Permits	40 years		27,440		(5,896)		21,544	
Goodwill			132,515		-		132,515	
Total Goodwill and Intangible Assets		\$	224,515	\$	(13,348)	\$	211,167	

During July 2015, goodwill increased approximately \$1.4 million and customer contracts and relationships increased \$1.2 million in connection with the Skyway Acquisition.

Amortization expense of intangibles was \$5.7 million the year ended March 31, 2015. After the impairment discussed above, amortization expense is expected to be approximately \$4.9 million for the remainder of fiscal 2016, \$9.2 million for fiscal year 2017, and \$3.2 million for fiscal years 2018 and 2019, \$2.2 million for fiscal year 2020 and \$1.3 million for fiscal year 2021.

(C) ACQUISITIONS

CRS Acquisition

On November 14, 2014, we acquired all of the outstanding equity interest in CRS Holdco LLC, CRS Proppants LLC, Great Northern Sand LLC and related entities (collectively "CRS Proppants") (such acquisition, the "CRS Acquisition"). CRS Proppants is a supplier of frac sand to the energy industry, and its business currently consists of a frac sand mine in New Auburn, Wisconsin, and a trans-load network into Texas and southwest Oklahoma.

<u>Purchase Price</u>: The purchase price (the "CRS Purchase Price") of the CRS Acquisition was approximately \$236.1 million, including approximately \$8.9 million of in-process capital expenditures paid as of the closing date. We funded the payment of the CRS Purchase Price at closing and expenses incurred in connection with the CRS Acquisition through borrowings under our bank credit facility, which was amended and restated on October 30, 2014. See Footnote (L) to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements for more information about our bank credit facility.

We previously reported the estimated CRS Purchase Price in our Form 10-K as approximately \$237.2 million. During the quarter ended June 30, 2015, we finalized the amount of working capital acquired at the closing, which resulted in a reduction in the CRS Purchase Price of approximately \$1.1 million.

<u>Recording of assets acquired and liabilities assumed</u>: The CRS Acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting which requires, among other things, that assets acquired and liabilities assumed be recognized at their fair values as of the acquisition date. We engaged a third-party to perform an appraisal valuation to support our preliminary estimate of the fair value of certain assets acquired in the CRS Acquisition. Included in the assets acquired, and liabilities assumed, are two long-term sales agreements that included prepayments for future sales under such agreements, with such prepayments classified as liabilities. Additionally, one of the agreements is with a customer that is currently in bankruptcy, and is not expected to fulfill its obligations under the agreement. We have been indemnified by the former owner against any loss related to this agreement, and such indemnity has been valued at fair value and recorded as an asset at the date of the CRS Acquisition.

The preparation of the valuation of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the CRS Acquisition requires the use of significant assumptions and estimates. Critical estimates include, but are not limited to, future expected cash flows, including projected revenues and expenses, and applicable discount rates. These estimates are based on assumptions that we believe to be reasonable. However, actual results may differ from these estimates.

The following table summarizes the allocation of the CRS Purchase Price to assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date:

A - - f

		As of
Purchase price allocation (in thousands)	Nover	nber 14, 2014
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	219
Accounts Receivable		14,640
Inventories		9,627
Prepaid and Other Assets		753
Property and Equipment		192,738
Intangible Assets		56,200
Indemnity under Sales Agreement		14,810
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities		(6,928)
Obligations under Long-term Sales Agreements		(28,131)
Asset Retirement Obligation		(4,112)
Deferred Taxes		(13,765)
Total Net Assets		236,051
Goodwill		-
Total Estimated Purchase Price	\$	236,051

Intangible Assets: The following table is a summary of the preliminary fair value estimates of the identifiable intangible assets (in thousands) and their weighted-average useful lives:

	Weighted Average Life	Estimated Fair Value
Customer Relationships	4	56,000
Permits	40	200
Total Intangible Assets	\$	56,200

During the quarter ended September 30, 2015, the above customer relationships were tested for impairment. See Footnote (B) to the unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of the impairment testing of these assets.

<u>Actual and pro forma impact of the CRS Acquisition</u>: The following table presents the net sales and operating loss of CRS Proppants that have been included in our consolidated statement of earnings from April 1, 2015 through September 30, 2015:

	Three Months Ended September 30, 2015		Aonths Ended tember 30, 2015	
	 (dollars in thousands)			
Revenues	\$ 12,455	\$	31,224	
Operating Loss	(41,257)		(46,066)	

Operating loss shown above for the three months ended September 30, 2015 has been impacted by approximately \$5.7 million, \$28.4 million and \$9.4 million of depreciation and amortization, impairments and write-down of raw sand inventory, respectively. Operating loss for the six months ended September 30, 2015 has been impacted by approximately \$11.3 million, \$28.4 million, \$9.4 million and \$0.5 million related to the impact of depreciation and amortization, impairments, write-down of raw sand inventory and the recording of acquired inventory at fair value, respectively.

The unaudited pro forma results presented below include the effects of the CRS Acquisition as if it had been consummated as of April 1, 2014. The pro forma results include the amortization associated with an estimate for acquired intangible assets and interest expense associated with debt used to fund the Acquisition and depreciation from the fair value adjustments for property and equipment. To better reflect the combined operating results,

material nonrecurring charges incurred by the Company directly related to the CRS Acquisition of \$2.1 million have been excluded from pro forma net income for the three and six months ended September 30, 2014.

	Three Months Ended September 30, 2014		x Months Ended September 30, 2014		
	 (dollars in thousands)				
Revenues	\$ 319,179	\$	597,932		
Net Income	\$ 60,669	\$	91,868		
Earnings per share - basic	\$ 1.22	\$	1.85		
Earnings per share - diluted	\$ 1.20	\$	1.82		

The pro forma results do not include any anticipated synergies or other expected benefits of the CRS Acquisition. Accordingly, the unaudited pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of either future results of operations or results that might have been achieved had the CRS Acquisition been consummated as of April 1, 2014.

Skyway Acquisition

On July 10, 2015, we completed the acquisition of a 600,000 ton per year Granulated Ground Blast Furnace Slag ("GGBFS") plant in South Chicago (the "Skyway Plant") from Holcim (US) Inc. (the "Skyway Acquisition"). Among other applications, GGBFS is used in conjunction with Portland cement to make durable concrete structures. The Skyway Plant purchases its primary raw material, slag, pursuant to a long term supply agreement with a third party.

The purchase price (the "Skyway Purchase Price") for the Skyway Acquisition was approximately \$29.9 million, net of \$2.5 million which will be refunded over the next eighteen months. We funded the payment of the Skyway Purchase Price and expenses incurred in connection with the Skyway Acquisition through operating cash flow and borrowings under our bank credit facility. We also assumed certain liabilities, including contractual obligations, related to the Skyway Plant. The purchase price was allocated as follows: \$1.9 million to accounts and notes receivable; \$2.3 million to inventories; \$24.6 million to property, plant and equipment; \$1.2 million to intangible assets; \$1.4 million to goodwill; and \$1.0 million to other assets. See Note (L) in the Notes to the Unaudited Financial Statements for more information about our bank credit facility.

(D) CASH FLOW INFORMATION—SUPPLEMENTAL

Cash payments made for interest were \$8.2 million and \$7.3 million for the six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Net payments made for federal and state income taxes during the six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, were \$43.8 million and \$32.2 million, respectively.

(E) ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE

Accounts and notes receivable have been shown net of the allowance for doubtful accounts of \$9.0 million and \$7.1 million at September 30, 2015 and March 31, 2015, respectively. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers' financial condition and generally require no collateral from our customers. The allowance for non-collection of receivables is based upon analysis of economic trends in the construction and oil and gas industries, detailed analysis of the expected collectability of accounts receivable that are past due and the expected collectability of overall receivables. Based on this analysis, we increased our allowance for doubtful accounts approximately \$2.0 million in recognition of the downturn in our oil and gas proppants business and potential financial impact of this downturn to our customers. We have no significant credit risk concentration among our diversified customer base.

We had notes receivable totaling approximately \$3.2 million at September 30, 2015, of which approximately \$0.5 million has been classified as current and presented with accounts receivable on the balance sheet. We lend funds to certain companies in the ordinary course of business, and the notes bear interest, on average, at LIBOR plus 3.5%. Remaining unpaid amounts, plus accrued interest, mature on various dates between 2015 and 2017. The notes are collateralized by certain assets of the borrowers, namely property and equipment, and are generally payable monthly. We monitor the credit risk of each borrower by focusing on the timeliness of payments, review of credit history and credit metrics and interaction with the borrowers.

(F) STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

A summary of changes in stockholders' equity follows:

	Ended S	the Six Months eptember 30, 2015 rs in thousands)
Common Stock –		
Balance at Beginning of Period	\$	502
Stock Option Exercises		1
Balance at End of Period		503
Capital in Excess of Par Value –		
Balance at Beginning of Period		272,441
Stock Compensation Expense		8,329
Shares Redeemed to Settle Employee Taxes		(1,728)
Stock Option Exercises		5,074
Share Repurchases and Retirement		(10,744)
Balance at End of Period		273,372
Retained Earnings –		
Balance at Beginning of Period		749,717
Dividends Declared to Stockholders		(10,054)
Net Earnings		67,581
Balance at End of Period		807,244
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss -		
Balance at Beginning of Period		(12,067)
Change in Funded Status of Pension Plan, net of tax		639
Balance at End of Period		(11,428)
Total Stockholders' Equity	\$	1,069,691

On August 10, 2015, the Company announced that the Board of Directors had authorized the Company to repurchase up to an additional 6,782,700 shares, for a total outstanding authorization of 7,500,000 shares. We repurchased 144,000 shares at an average price of \$74.61 during the three months ended September 30, 2015. We also purchased an additional 110,000 shares during the last week of September, which were not settled until the first week of October, and 130,000 shares during the first week of October 2015 at a combined average price of \$70.31. Including the shares purchased during the last week of September, which settled in the first week of October, and the shares purchased in early October, we have authorization to purchase an additional 7,116,000 shares.

(G) INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of average cost (including applicable material, labor, depreciation, and plant overhead) or market, and consist of the following:

		of		
	Sej	otember 30, 2015		March 31, 2015
		(dollars in	thousa	ands)
Raw Materials and Material-in-Progress	\$	107,698	\$	115,345
Finished Cement		18,328		20,508
Gypsum Wallboard		7,422		7,741
Frac Sand		4,674		4,928
Aggregates		10,732		11,131
Paperboard		7,669		8,493
Repair Parts and Supplies		62,218		62,121
Fuel and Coal		5,926		5,197
	\$	224,667	\$	235,464

(H) ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

	Sep	tember 30,		March 31,
		2015	.1	2015
		(dollars in		
Payroll and Incentive Compensation	\$	17,029	\$	19,082
Benefits		10,560		9,951
Interest		4,524		4,524
Property Taxes		5,667		3,189
Power and Fuel		1,527		1,619
Sales and Use Tax		780		523
Legal		1,402		1,673
Other		8,577		6,269
	\$	50,066	\$	46,830

(I) SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

On August 7, 2013 our stockholders approved the Eagle Materials Inc. Amended and Restated Incentive Plan (the "Plan"), which increased the shares we are authorized to issue as awards by 3,000,000 (1,500,000 of which may be stock awards). Under the terms of the Plan, we can issue equity awards, including stock options, restricted stock units ("RSUs"), restricted stock and stock appreciation rights to employees of the Company and members of the Board of Directors. Awards that were already outstanding prior to the approval of the Plan on August 7, 2013 remain outstanding. The Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors specifies the terms for grants of equity awards under the Plan.

Long-Term Compensation Plans -

Options. In June 2015, the Compensation Committee approved an equity award of an aggregate of 268,571 stock options pursuant to the Plan to certain officers and key employees that vest ratably over a three year period (the "Fiscal 2016 Employee Stock Option Grant"). The stock options have a term of ten years from the date of grant. The Fiscal 2016 Employee Stock Option Grant was valued at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. In August 2015, we granted 17,501 options to members of the Board of Directors (the "Fiscal 2016 Board of Directors Stock Option Grant"). Options granted under the Fiscal 2016 Board of Directors Stock Option

Grant vest immediately and can be exercised from the date of grant until their expiration on the tenth anniversary of the date of grant.

The weighted-average assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model to value the option awards in fiscal 2016 are as follows:

	Fiscal 2016
Dividend Yield	2.0%
Expected Volatility	36.5%
Risk Free Interest Rate	1.7%
Expected Life	6.0 years

Stock option expense for all outstanding stock option awards totaled approximately \$2.1 million and \$4.2 million for the three and six months ended September 30, 2015, respectively and approximately \$2.0 million and \$3.4 million for the three and six months ended September 30, 2014, respectively. At September 30, 2015, there was approximately \$13.8 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to outstanding stock options, net of estimated forfeitures, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.4 years.

The following table represents stock option activity for the six months ended September 30, 2015:

	Number of Shares	Weighted- Average Exercise Price
Outstanding Options at Beginning of Period	1,665,565	\$ 46.37
Granted	293,572	\$ 81.48
Exercised	(97,410)	\$ 26.47
Cancelled	(15,000)	\$ 86.35
Outstanding Options at End of Period	1,846,727	\$ 52.68
Options Exercisable at End of Period	1,252,675	\$ 40.29
Weighted-Average Fair Value of Options Granted during the Period	\$ 24.76	

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at September 30, 2015:

		Outstanding Options	Exercisable Options				
Range of Exercise Prices	Weight Avera Number of Remain Shares Contrac Outstanding Life		Weighted - Average Exercise Price		Number of Shares Outstanding		Weighted - Average Exercise Price
\$23.17 - \$ 30.74	504,200	4.36	\$	26.65	502,200	\$	26.64
\$33.08 - \$ 37.95	478,868	6.41	\$	33.96	458,868	\$	33.92
\$53.22 - \$ 74.10	282,936	7.32	\$	66.60	189,039	\$	66.67
\$79.73 – \$ 93.56	580,723	9.25	\$	83.92	102,568	\$	86.95
	1,846,727	6.89	\$	52.68	1,252,675	\$	40.29

At September 30, 2015, the aggregate intrinsic value for outstanding and exercisable options was approximately \$29.1 million and \$35.2 million, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the six months ended September 30, 2015 was approximately \$5.2 million.

Restricted Stock. In June 2015, the Compensation Committee approved the granting of an aggregate of 93,782 shares of restricted stock to certain officers and key employees that will be earned if certain performance conditions are satisfied (the "Fiscal 2016 Employee Restricted Stock Award"). The performance criterion for the Fiscal 2016 Employee Restricted Stock Award is based upon the achievement of certain levels of return on equity, ranging from 12.5% to 17.5%, for fiscal year ending March 31, 2016. All restricted shares will be earned if the return on equity is 17.5% or greater, and the percentage of shares earned will be reduced proportionately to

approximately 75% if the return on equity is 12.5%. If the Company does not achieve a return on equity of at least 12.5%, all awards will be forfeited. If the criteria are met, the award may be reduced by the Compensation Committee based on individual performance goals. Following any such reduction, restrictions on the earned shares will lapse ratably over five years, with the first fifth lapsing promptly following the determination date, and the remaining restrictions lapsing on March 31, 2017 through 2020. The value of the Fiscal 2016 Employee Restricted Stock Award, net of estimated forfeitures, is being expensed over a five year period. In August 2015, we awarded 15,139 shares of restricted stock to members of the Board of Directors (the "Board of Directors Fiscal 2016 Restricted Stock Award"). Awards issued under the Board of Directors Fiscal 2016 Restricted Stock Award do not fully vest until the retirement of each director, in accordance with our director retirement policy.

Expense related to restricted shares was approximately \$1.9 million and \$4.2 million for the three and six months ended September 30, 2015, respectively, and approximately \$1.8 million and \$3.3 million for the three and six months ended September 30, 2014, respectively. At September 30, 2015, there was approximately \$20.8 million of unearned compensation from restricted stock, net of estimated forfeitures, which will be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.6 years.

The number of shares available for future grants of stock options, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights and restricted stock under the Plan was 4,540,994 at September 30, 2015.

(J) COMPUTATION OF EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted common shares outstanding is as follows:

	For the Three Ended Septem		For the Six M Ended Septem	
	2015	2014	2015	2014
Weighted-Average Shares of Common Stock Outstanding	49,828,189	49,591,495	49,797,972	49,546,916
Common Equivalent Shares:				
Assumed Exercise of Outstanding Dilutive Options	1,278,908	1,423,211	1,303,636	1,453,437
Less: Shares Repurchased from Assumed Proceeds of				
Assumed Exercised Options	(866,236)	(891,837)	(871,354)	(933,050)
Restricted Shares	229,290	304,417	230,693	290,611
Weighted-Average Common and Common Equivalent Shares				
Outstanding	50,470,151	50,427,286	50,460,947	50,357,914
Shares Excluded Due to Anti-dilution Effects	596,973	218,636	527,330	170,227

(K) PENSION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

We sponsor several defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans which together cover substantially all our employees. Benefits paid under the defined benefit plans covering certain hourly employees are based on years of service and the employee's qualifying compensation over the last few years of employment. The following table shows the components of net periodic cost for our plans:

	For the Three Months Ended September 30,			For the Six N Septem		
	 2015	20	14	 2015		2014
	 (dollars ir	n thousands)		 (dollars ir	thous	ands)
Service Cost – Benefits Earned During the Period	\$ 231	\$	236	\$ 488	\$	472
Interest Cost of Benefit Obligations	381		315	758		630
Expected Return on Plan Assets	(430)		(414)	(869)		(828)
Recognized Net Actuarial Loss	75		155	150		310
Amortization of Prior-Service Cost	432		3	859		6
Net Periodic Pension Cost	\$ 689	\$	295	\$ 1,386	\$	590

(L) INCOME TAXES

Income taxes for the interim period presented have been included in the accompanying financial statements on the basis of an estimated annual effective tax rate. In addition to the amount of tax resulting from applying the estimated annual effective tax rate to pre-tax income, we will, when appropriate, include certain items treated as discrete events to arrive at an estimated overall tax amount. The effective tax rate for the six months ended September 30, 2015 was approximately 32%, which was consistent with the effective tax rate for the six months ended September 30, 2014.

(M) LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following:

		As of					
	Sep	otember 30,		March 31,			
		2015		2015			
		(dollars in thousands)					
Credit Facility	\$	327,000	\$	330,000			
Senior Notes		182,759		182,759			
Total Debt		509,759		512,759			
Less: Current Portion of Long-term Debt		(57,045)		(57,045)			
Total Long-term Debt	\$	452,714	\$	455,714			

Credit Facility -

We have a \$500.0 million revolving credit facility (the "Credit Facility"), including a swingline loan sublimit of \$25.0 million, which is scheduled to expire on October 30, 2019. Borrowings under the Credit Facility are guaranteed by substantially all of the Company's subsidiaries. At the option of the Company, outstanding principal amounts on the Credit Facility bear interest at a variable rate equal to (i) LIBOR, plus an agreed margin (ranging from 100 to 225 basis points), which is to be established quarterly based upon the Company's ratio of consolidated EBITDA, defined as earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, to the Company's consolidated indebtedness (the "Leverage Ratio"), or (ii) an alternative base rate which is the higher of (a) the prime rate or (b) the federal funds rate plus 1/2% per annum plus an agreed margin (ranging from 0 to 125 basis points). Interest payments are payable, in the case of loans bearing interest at a rate based on the federal funds rate, quarterly, or in the case of loans bearing interest at a rate based on LIBOR, at the end of the LIBOR advance periods, which can be a period of up to nine months at the option of the Company. The Company is also required to pay a commitment fee on unused available borrowings under the Credit Facility ranging from 10 to 35 basis points depending upon the Leverage Ratio. The Credit Facility contains customary covenants that restrict our ability to incur additional debt, encumber our assets, sell assets, make or enter into certain investments, loans or guaranties and enter into sale and leaseback arrangements. The Credit Facility also requires us to maintain a consolidated indebtedness to consolidated earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, certain transaction-related deductions and other non-

cash deductions) of 3.5:1.0 or less and an interest coverage ratio (consolidated earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, certain transaction-related deductions and other non-cash deductions to consolidated interest expense) of at least 2.5:1.0. We had \$327.0 million of borrowings outstanding at September 30, 2015. Based on our Leverage Ratio, we had \$164.0 million of available borrowings, net of the outstanding letters of credit, at September 30, 2015.

The Credit Facility has a \$50.0 million letter of credit facility. Under the letter of credit facility, the Company pays a fee at a per annum rate equal to the applicable margin for Eurodollar loans in effect from time to time plus a one-time letter of credit fee in an amount equal to 0.125% of the initial stated amount. At September 30, 2015, we had \$9.0 million of letters of credit outstanding.

Senior Notes -

We entered into a Note Purchase Agreement on November 15, 2005 (the "2005 Note Purchase Agreement") related to our sale of \$200 million of senior, unsecured notes, designated as Series 2005A Senior Notes (the "Series 2005A Senior Notes") in a private placement transaction. The Series 2005A Senior Notes, which are guaranteed by substantially all of our subsidiaries, were sold at par and issued in three tranches on November 15, 2005. Since entering into the 2005 Note Purchase Agreement, we have repurchased \$81.1 million in principal of the Series 2005A Senior Notes (in periods prior to the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013). During November 2012, Tranche A of the Series 2005A Senior Notes matured and we retired the remaining \$4.7 million in notes from this Tranche. Following these repurchases and maturities, the amounts outstanding for each of the remaining tranches are as follows:

	Prir	ncipal	Maturity Date	Interest Rate
Tranche B	\$	57.0 million	November 15, 2015	5.38%
Tranche C	\$	57.2 million	November 15, 2017	5.48%

Interest for each tranche of Notes is payable semi-annually on the 15th day of May and the 15th day of November of each year until all principal is paid for the respective tranche.

We also entered into an additional Note Purchase Agreement on October 2, 2007 (the "2007 Note Purchase Agreement") related to our sale of \$200 million of senior, unsecured notes, designated as Series 2007A Senior Notes (the "Series 2007A Senior Notes") in a private placement transaction. The Series 2007A Senior Notes, which are guaranteed by substantially all of our subsidiaries, were sold at par and issued in four tranches on October 2, 2007. Since entering into the 2007 Note Purchase Agreement, we have repurchased \$122.0 million in principal of the Series 2007A Senior Notes (in periods prior to the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013). During October 2014, Tranche A of the Series 2007A Senior Notes matured and we retired the remaining \$9.5 million in notes from this Tranche. Following the repurchase, the amounts outstanding for each of the four tranches are as follows:

	Principal	Maturity Date	Interest Rate
Tranche B	\$ 8.0 million	October 2, 2016	6.27%
Tranche C	\$ 24.0 million	October 2, 2017	6.36%
Tranche D	\$ 36.5 million	October 2, 2019	6.48%

Interest for each tranche of Notes is payable semi-annually on the second day of April and the second day of October of each year until all principal is paid for the respective tranche.

Our obligations under the 2005 Note Purchase Agreement and the 2007 Note Purchase Agreement (collectively referred to as the "Note Purchase Agreements") and the Series 2005A Senior Notes and the Series 2007A Senior Notes (collectively referred to as "the Senior Notes") are equal in right of payment with all other senior, unsecured debt of the Company, including our debt under the Credit Facility. The Note Purchase Agreements contain customary restrictive covenants, including covenants that place limits on our ability to encumber our assets, to incur additional debt, to sell assets, or to merge or consolidate with third parties, as well

as certain cross covenants with the Credit Facility. We were in compliance with all financial ratios and tests at September 30, 2015.

Pursuant to a Subsidiary Guaranty Agreement, substantially all of our subsidiaries have guaranteed the punctual payment of all principal, interest, and Make-Whole Amounts (as defined in the Note Purchase Agreements) on the Senior Notes and the other payment and performance obligations of the Company contained in the Senior Notes and in the Note Purchase Agreements. We are permitted, at our option and without penalty, to prepay from time to time at least 10% of the original aggregate principal amount of the Senior Notes at 100% of the principal amount to be prepaid, together with interest accrued on such amount to be prepaid to the date of payment, plus a Make-Whole Amount. The Make-Whole Amount is computed by discounting the remaining scheduled payments of interest and principal of the Senior Notes being prepaid at a discount rate equal to the sum of 50 basis points and the yield to maturity of U.S. treasury securities having a maturity equal to the remaining average life of the Senior Notes being prepaid.

We are leasing one of our cement plants from the city of Sugar Creek, Missouri. The city of Sugar Creek issued industrial revenue bonds to partly finance improvements to the cement plant. The lease payments due to the city of Sugar Creek under the cement plant lease, which was entered into upon the sale of the industrial revenue bonds, are equal in amount to the payments required to be made by the city of Sugar Creek to the holders of the industrial revenue bonds. Because we are the holder of all of the outstanding industrial revenue bonds, no debt is reflected on our financial statements in connection with our lease of the cement plant. At the conclusion of the lease in fiscal 2021, we have the option to purchase the cement plant for a nominal amount.

(N) SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise that engage in business activities that earn revenues, incur expenses and prepare separate financial information that is evaluated regularly by our chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources and assess performance.

We operate in five business segments: Cement, Gypsum Wallboard, Recycled Paperboard, Oil and Gas Proppants and Concrete and Aggregates. These operations are conducted in the U.S. and include the mining of limestone and the manufacture, production, distribution and sale of Portland cement (a basic construction material which is the essential binding ingredient in concrete), the mining of gypsum and the manufacture and sale of gypsum wallboard, the manufacture and sale of recycled paperboard to the gypsum wallboard industry and other paperboard converters, the sale of readymix concrete and the mining and sale of aggregates (crushed stone, sand and gravel) and sand used in hydraulic fracturing ("frac sand"). The products that we manufacture, distribute and sell are basic materials used with broad application as construction products, building materials, and basic materials used for oil and natural gas extraction. Our construction products are used in residential, industrial, commercial and infrastructure construction and include cement, concrete and aggregates. Our building materials are sold into similar markets and include gypsum wallboard. Our basic materials used for oil and natural gas extraction include frac sand and oil well cement.

We operate six cement plants, one slag grinding facility, sixteen cement distribution terminals, five gypsum wallboard plants, including the plant idled in Bernalillo, N.M., a gypsum wallboard distribution center, a recycled paperboard mill, seventeen readymix concrete batch plant locations, three aggregates processing plant locations, three frac sand processing facilities, three frac sand drying facilities and six frac sand trans-load locations. The principal markets for our cement products are Texas, northern Illinois (including Chicago), the central plains, the Rocky Mountains, northern Nevada, and northern California. Gypsum wallboard and recycled paperboard are distributed throughout the continental U.S, with the exception of the northeast. Concrete and aggregates are sold to local readymix producers and paving contractors in the Austin, Texas area, north of Sacramento, California and the greater Kansas City, Missouri area, while frac sand is currently sold into shale deposit zones across the United States. During July 2015, we completed the Skyway Acquisition, which is operated by Illinois Cement Company, and its operations are included in the Cement segment.

We conduct one of our six cement plant operations, Texas Lehigh Cement Company LP in Buda, Texas, through a Joint Venture. For segment reporting purposes only, we proportionately consolidate our 50% share of the Joint Venture's revenues and operating earnings, which is consistent with the way management reports the segments within the Company for making operating decisions and assessing performance.

We account for intersegment sales at market prices. The following table sets forth certain financial information relating to our operations by segment:

	For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2015 2014			 For the Si Ended Sep 2015			
		(dollars in	thou		 (dollars in	thousa	
Revenues -		· ·		,	,		,
Cement	\$	164,790	\$	145,861	\$ 292,966	\$	273,797
Gypsum Wallboard		119,701		111,655	234,753		224,332
Paperboard		39,145		35,579	74,463		73,058
Oil and Gas Proppants		18,307		10,414	41,132		21,594
Concrete and Aggregates		36,671		31,961	65,203		58,123
Sub-total		378,614		335,470	708,517		650,904
Less: Intersegment Revenues		(20,090)		(17,523)	(38,019)		(34,128)
Net Revenues, including Joint Venture		358,524		317,947	670,498		616,776
Less: Joint Venture		(29,536)		(33,139)	(56,547)		(65,717)
Net Revenues	\$	328,988	\$	284,808	\$ 613,951	\$	551,059

	For the Three Months Ended September 30,				 For the S Ended Sep	tember 30,	
		2015		2014	 2015	2014	
		(dollars in	thousar	ıds)	(dollars in	thousan	ıds)
Intersegment Revenues -							
Cement	\$	4,232	\$	2,911	\$ 7,358	\$	5,271
Paperboard		15,596		14,324	30,147		28,340
Concrete and Aggregates		262		288	514		517
	\$	20,090	\$	17,523	\$ 38,019	\$	34,128
Cement Sales Volume (in thousands of tons) -	-		-		 		
Wholly –owned Operations		1,248		1,193	2,239		2,200
Joint Venture		236		283	448		567
		1,484		1,476	2,687	-	2,767

		For the Three Months Ended September 30,					For the Six Months Ended September 30,				
		2015		2014		2015		2014			
		(dollars in	thousa	ands)		(dollars in	thousa	nds)			
Operating Earnings -	4	10 555	.	50.450	<i>ф</i>	E 4 800	<i>ф</i>	50.055			
Cement	\$	48,577	\$	38,450	\$	74,290	\$	58,957			
Gypsum Wallboard		40,002		37,002		80,896		74,430			
Paperboard		8,138		7,984		14,168		15,531			
Oil and Gas Proppants		(44,600)		711		(50,236)		74			
Concrete and Aggregates		3,857		2,965		5,783		4,321			
Other, net	. <u></u>	572		883		1,007		1,562			
Sub-total		56,546		87,995		125,908		154,875			
Corporate General and Administrative		(9,364)		(7,414)		(18,355)		(14,456)			
Acquisition and Litigation Expense		-		(2,103)		-		(2,103)			
Earnings Before Interest and Income Taxes		47,182		78,478		107,553		138,316			
Interest Expense, net		(4,342)		(3,901)		(8,828)		(7,953)			
Earnings Before Income Taxes	\$	42,840	\$	74,577	\$	98,725	\$	130,363			
Cement Operating Earnings -											
Wholly–owned Operations	\$	36,897	\$	26,399	\$	54,780	\$	37,106			
Joint Venture		11,680		12,051		19,510		21,851			
	\$	48,577	\$	38,450	\$	74,290	\$	58,957			
Capital Expenditures -											
Cement	\$	5,349	\$	4,176	\$	13,499	\$	12,996			
Gypsum Wallboard		203		1,558		1,700		3,793			
Paperboard		2,424		823		3,268		1,149			
Oil and Gas Proppants		16,744		6,000		32,711		13,602			
Concrete and Aggregates		4,027		4,219		4,691		8,349			
Other		-		82		-		150			
	\$	28,747	\$	16,858	\$	55,869	\$	40,039			
Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization -											
Cement	\$	8,629	\$	7,987	\$	16,495	\$	15,870			
Gypsum Wallboard		4,819		5,031	•	9,605		10,129			
Paperboard		2,063		2,058		4,116		4,127			
Oil and Gas Proppants		7,205		684		14,764		1,253			
Concrete and Aggregates		1,565		1,369		3,070		2,593			
Other, net		489		445		984		892			
	\$	24,770	\$	17,574	\$	49,034	\$	34,864			

		As of						
	-	September 30,		March 31,				
	-	2015	2015					
Identifiable Assets -		(dollars in thousands)						
Cement	\$	836,927	\$	777,956				
Gypsum Wallboard		393,602		403,279				
Paperboard		126,497		123,519				
Oil and Gas Proppants		434,093		455,572				
Concrete and Aggregates		109,154		96,610				
Corporate and Other		19,977		25,655				
	\$	1,920,250	\$	1,882,591				

Segment operating earnings, including the proportionately consolidated 50% interest in the revenues and expenses of the Joint Venture, represent revenues, less direct operating expenses, segment depreciation, and segment selling, general and administrative expenses. Corporate assets consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, general office assets, miscellaneous other assets and unrecognized tax benefits. The segment breakdown of goodwill is as follows:

		A		
	_	September 30,		March 31,
		2015		2015
		(dollars in	inds)	
Cement	\$	9,729	\$	8,359
Gypsum Wallboard		116,618		116,618
Paperboard		7,538		7,538
	\$	133,885	\$	132,515

Summarized financial information for the Joint Venture that is not consolidated is set out below (this summarized financial information includes the total amount for the Joint Venture and not our 50% interest in those amounts):

	For the Th Ended Sep			For the Si Ended Sep			
	 2015 2014				2015		2014
	 (dollars in thousands)				(dollars in	thousa	nds)
Revenues	\$ 59,071	\$	66,278	\$	113,094	\$	131,434
Gross Margin	\$ 25,193	\$	25,369	\$	42,204	\$	45,827
Earnings Before Income Taxes	\$ 23,360	\$	24,102	\$	39,020	\$	43,702

		As of					
	9	September 30,		March 31,			
		2015		2015			
		(dollars in	ands)				
Current Assets	\$	74,991	\$	68,399			
Non-Current Assets	\$	42,154	\$	42,765			
Current Liabilities	\$	20,958	\$	19,723			

(O) INTEREST EXPENSE

The following components are included in interest expense, net:

	For the Three Months Ended September 30,					For the Six Months Ended September 30,				
		2015		2014	2015			2014		
		(dollars in thousands)				(dollars in thousands)				
Interest (Income)	\$	(1)	\$	(1)	\$	(2)	\$	(2)		
Interest Expense		4,160		3,510		8,456		7,170		
Interest Expense – Income Taxes		-		174		-		348		
Other Expenses		183		218		374		437		
Interest Expense, net	\$	4,342	\$	3,901	\$	8,828	\$	7,953		

Interest income includes interest on investments of excess cash. Components of interest expense include interest associated with the Senior Notes, the Credit Facility and commitment fees based on the unused portion of the Credit Facility. Other expenses include amortization of debt issuance costs, and credit facility costs.

(P) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

We have certain deductible limits under our workers' compensation and liability insurance policies for which reserves are established based on the undiscounted estimated costs of known and anticipated claims. We have entered into standby letter of credit agreements relating to workers' compensation and auto and general liability self-insurance. At September 30, 2015, we had contingent liabilities under these outstanding letters of credit of approximately \$9.0 million.

In the ordinary course of business, we execute contracts involving indemnifications that are standard in the industry and indemnifications specific to a transaction such as sale of a business. These indemnifications may include claims relating to any of the following: environmental and tax matters; intellectual property rights; governmental regulations and employment-related matters; customer, supplier, and other commercial contractual relationships; construction contracts and financial matters. While the maximum amount to which the Company may be exposed under such agreements cannot be estimated, it is the opinion of management that these indemnifications are not expected to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. We currently have no outstanding guarantees.

We are currently contingently liable for performance under \$13.6 million in performance bonds required by certain states and municipalities, and their related agencies. The bonds are principally for certain reclamation obligations and mining permits. We have indemnified the underwriting insurance company against any exposure under the performance bonds. In our past experience, no material claims have been made against these financial instruments.

EPA Notice of Violation

On October 5, 2010, Region IX of the EPA issued a Notice of Violation and Finding of Violation ("NOV") alleging violations by our subsidiary, Nevada Cement Company ("NCC"), of the Clean Air Act ("CAA"). The NOV alleges that NCC made certain physical changes to its facility in the 1990s without first obtaining permits required by the Prevention of Significant Deterioration requirements and Title V permit requirements of the CAA. The EPA also alleges that NCC has failed to submit to the EPA since 2002 certain reports required by the National Emissions Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants General Provisions and the Portland Cement Manufacturing Industry Standards. On March 12, 2014, the EPA Region IX issued a second NOV to NCC. The second NOV is materially similar to the 2010 NOV except that it alleges violations of the new source performance standards ("NSPS") for Portland cement plants. The NOVs state that the EPA may seek penalties although it does not propose or assess any specific level of penalties or specify what relief the EPA will seek for the alleged violations. NCC believes it has meritorious defenses to the allegations in the NOVs. NCC met with the

EPA in December 2010, September 2012 and May 2014 to present its defenses and to discuss a resolution of the alleged violations. The EPA and NCC remain in discussions regarding the alleged violations. If a negotiated settlement cannot be reached, NCC intends to vigorously defend these matters in any enforcement action that may be pursued by the EPA. As a part of a settlement, or should NCC fail in its defense in any enforcement action, NCC could be required to make substantial capital expenditures to modify its facility and incur increased operating costs. NCC could also be required to pay significant civil penalties. Additionally, an enforcement action could take many years to resolve the underlying issues alleged in the NOV. We are currently unable to determine the final outcome of this matter or the impact of an unfavorable determination upon our financial position or results of operations.

Domestic Wallboard Antitrust Litigation

Since late December 2012, several purported class action lawsuits were filed in various United States District Courts, including the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, Western District of North Carolina and the Northern District of Illinois, against the Company's subsidiary, American Gypsum Company LLC ("American Gypsum"), alleging that American Gypsum conspired with other wallboard manufacturers to fix the price for drywall sold in the United States in violation of federal antitrust laws and, in some cases related provisions of state law. The complaints allege that the defendant wallboard manufacturers conspired to increase prices through the announcement and implementation of coordinated price increases, output restrictions, and other restraints of trade, including the elimination of individual "job quote" pricing. In addition to American Gypsum, the defendants in these lawsuits include CertainTeed Corp., USG Corporation and United States Gypsum (together "USG"), New NGC, Inc., Lafarge North America, Temple Inland Inc. ("TIN") and PABCO Building Products LLC. On April 8, 2013, the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation ("JPML") transferred and consolidated all related cases to the Eastern District of Pennsylvania for coordinated pretrial proceedings.

On June 24, 2013, the direct and indirect purchaser plaintiffs filed consolidated amended class action complaints. The direct purchasers' complaint added the Company as a defendant. The plaintiffs in the consolidated class action lawsuits bring claims on behalf of purported classes of direct or indirect purchasers of wallboard from January 1, 2012 to the present for unspecified monetary damages (including treble damages) and in some cases injunctive relief. On July 29, 2013, the Company and American Gypsum answered the complaints, denying all allegations that they conspired to increase the price of drywall and asserting affirmative defenses to the plaintiffs' claims.

In 2014, USG and TIN entered into agreements with counsel representing the direct and indirect purchaser classes pursuant to which they agreed to settle all claims against them. On August 20, 2015, the court granted final approvalof USG and TIN's settlements with the direct and indirect purchaser plaintiffs. Initial discovery in this litigation is complete. At this stage we are unable to estimate the amount of any reasonably possible loss or range of reasonably possible losses associated with these lawsuits. American Gypsum denies the allegations in these lawsuits and will vigorously defend itself against these claims. Defendants' motions for summary judgement were filed in the class actions in the first quarter of fiscal 2016.

On March 17, 2015, a group of homebuilders filed a complaint against the defendants, including American Gypsum, based upon the same conduct alleged in the consolidated class action complaints. On March 24, 2015, the JPML transferred this action to the multidistrict litigation already pending in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania.

In June 2015, American Gypsum and an employee received grand jury subpoenas from the United States District Court for the Western District of North Carolina seeking information regarding an investigation of the gypsum drywall industry by the Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice. We believe the investigation, although a separate proceeding, is related to the same subject matter at issue in the litigation described above and we intend to fully cooperate with government officials. Given its preliminary nature, we are currently unable to determine the ultimate outcome of such investigation.

(Q) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of our long-term debt has been estimated based upon our current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements. The fair value of our Senior Notes at September 30, 2015 is as follows:

F	air Value
(dollar	s in thousands)
\$	57,272
	59,941
	8,281
	25,505
	40,153

The estimated fair value of our long-term debt was based on quoted prices of similar debt instruments with similar terms that are publicly traded (level 2 input). The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts and notes receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair values at September 30, 2015 due to the short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities. The fair value of our Credit Facility also approximates its carrying value at September 30, 2015.

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Eagle Materials Inc. is a diversified producer of basic construction products and building materials used in residential, industrial, commercial and infrastructure construction and products used in ion and natural gas extraction. Information presented for the three and six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, reflects the Company's business segments, consisting of Cement, Gypsum Wallboard, Recycled Paperboard, Oil and Gas Proppants and Concrete and Aggregates. These operations are conducted in the U.S. and include the mining of limestone and the manufacture, production, distribution and sale of Portland cement (a basic construction material which is the essential binding ingredient in concrete) as well as specialty oil well cement; the mining of gypsum and the manufacture and sale of gypsum wallboard; the manufacture and sale of aggregates (crushed stone, sand and gravel) and the mining and sale of sand used in hydraulic fracturing ("frac sand"). The products that we manufacture, distribute and sell are basic materials with broad application as construction products, building materials and basic materials used for oil and natural gas extraction. Our construction products are used in residential, industrial, commercial and infrastructure construction and include cement, concrete and aggregates. Our building materials are sold into similar markets and include gypsum wallboard. Our basic materials used for oil and gas extraction include frac sand and oil well cement. Certain information for each of Concrete and Aggregates is broken out separately in the segment discussions.

On November 14, 2014, we acquired of all of the outstanding equity interests of CRS Holdco LLC, CRS Proppants LLC, Great Northern Sand LLC, and related entities (collectively, "CRS Proppants") (such acquisition, the "CRS Acquisition"). CRS Proppants is a supplier of frac sand to the energy industry, and its business currently consists of a frac sand mine in New Auburn, Wisconsin, and a trans-load network into Texas and southwest Oklahoma. The purchase price (the "CRS Purchase Price") paid by the Company for the CRS Acquisition was approximately \$236.1 million in cash, including approximately \$8.9 million for in-process capital expenditures paid through the closing date, and estimated working capital and other estimated closing amounts. The CRS Purchase Price was funded through borrowings under the Company's Credit Facility. CRS Proppants was in the process of expanding its frac sand mine in New Auburn, Wisconsin at the time of purchase. This expansion was completed during the first quarter of fiscal 2016, at a cost of approximately \$8.0 million.

The decline in oil prices during the summer adversely impacted U.S. oil and gas drilling activity leading to further reductions in demand and pricing for proppants. As a result, we recorded impairments to several intangible assets originally booked in connection with our acquisition of CRS Proppants and revalued downward certain raw sand inventory values associated with the downward revaluation of raw sand inventory that CRS Proppants purchased from a third party pursuant to a purchase contract entered into in connection with the plant expansion. We have fulfilled our obligations under this purchase contract. The impairments and inventory revaluation charges totaled approximately \$37.8 million (pre-tax) and are recorded within our Oil and Gas Proppants segment.

On July 10, 2015, we completed the acquisition of a 600,000 ton per year Granulated Ground Blast Furnace Slag ("GGBFS") plant in South Chicago (the "Skyway Plant") from Holcim (US) Inc. (the "Skyway Acquisition"). Among other applications, GGBFS is used in conjunction with Portland cement to make durable concrete structures. The Skyway Plant purchases its primary raw material, slag, pursuant to a long term supply agreement with a third party.

The purchase price (the "Skyway Purchase Price") for the Skyway Acquisition was approximately \$29.9 million, net of \$2.5 million which will be refunded over the next eighteen months. We funded the payment of the Skyway Purchase Price and expenses incurred in connection with the Skyway Acquisition through operating cash flow. We also assumed certain liabilities, including contractual obligations, related to the Skyway Plant.

We operate in cyclical commodity businesses that are affected by changes in market conditions and the overall construction environment. Our operations, depending on each business segment, range from local in

nature to national businesses. We have operations in a variety of geographic markets, which subject us to the economic conditions in those geographic markets as well as economic conditions in the national market. General economic downturns or localized downturns in the regions where we have operations may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Our Cement companies focus on the U.S. heartland in Texas, Oklahoma, Missouri, Colorado, Wyoming and Nevada, as well as the Chicago, Illinois metropolitan area. Due to the low value-to-weight ratio of cement, it is usually shipped within a 150 mile radius of the plants by truck and up to 300 miles by rail. Concrete and Aggregates are even more regional as our operations serve the areas immediately surrounding Austin, Texas, north of Sacramento, California and the greater Kansas City, Missouri area, while frac sand is currently sold into shale deposit zones across the United States. Cement, concrete and aggregates and frac sand demand may fluctuate more widely because local and regional markets and economies may be more sensitive to changes than the national markets. Our Wallboard and Paperboard operations are more national in scope and shipments are made throughout most of the continental United States, except for the northeast.

We conduct one of our cement operations through a joint venture, Texas Lehigh Cement Company LP, which is located in Buda, Texas (the "Joint Venture"). We own a 50% interest in the Joint Venture and account for our interest under the equity method of accounting. We proportionately consolidate our 50% share of the Joint Venture's revenues and operating earnings in the presentation of our cement segment, which is the way management organizes the segments within the Company for making operating decisions and assessing performance.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated Results

	For the Three Months Ended September 30,						For the Six M Septem			
		2015		2014	Change	2015			2014	Change
Devenue	¢	(In thousands ex	cept j		100/	¢	(In thousands ex	xcept or	• /	110/
Revenues	Э	328,988	Э	284,808	16%	\$	613,951	Э	551,059	11%
Cost of Goods Sold		(284,694)		(209,747)	36%		(508, 560)		(419,597)	21%
Gross Profit		44,294		75,061	(41%)		105,391		131,462	(20%)
Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Joint Venture		11,680		12,051	(3%)		19,510		21,851	(11%)
Corporate General and Administrative		(9,364)		(7,414)	26%		(18,355)		(14,456)	27%
Acquisition and Litigation Expense		-		(2,103)	(100%)		-		(2,103)	(100%)
Other Income		572		883	(35%)		1,007		1,562	(36%)
Interest Expense, net		(4,342)		(3,901)	11%		(8,828)		(7,953)	11%
Earnings Before Income Taxes		42,840		74,577	(43%)		98,725		130,363	(24%)
Income Tax Expense		(13,021)		(24,258)	(46%)		(31,144)		(42,334)	(26%)
Net Earnings	\$	29,819	\$	50,319	(41%)	\$	67,581	\$	88,029	(23%)
Diluted Earnings per Share	\$	0.59	\$	1.00	(41%)	\$	1.34	\$	1.75	(23%)

Revenues. Revenues were \$329.0 million and \$284.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Revenues from the CRS and Skyway Acquisitions positively impacted revenues by approximately \$12.5 million and \$9.2 million, respectively. Revenues increased in all of our segments except our legacy oil and gas proppants segment. The increase in revenues was due primarily to increased average net sales prices in all segments except gypsum wallboard, which was down slightly and increased sales volumes in all segments except aggregates. The reduction in revenues from our legacy oil and gas proppants business was due primarily to reduced sales volumes. Excluding revenues from the CRS and Skyway Acquisitions, increased net sales prices and sales volumes positively impacted net revenue during the quarter ended September 30, 2015, by approximately \$7.8 million and \$14.7 million, respectively.

Revenues were \$614.0 million and \$551.1 million for the six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Revenues from the CRS and Skyway Acquisitions positively impacted revenues by approximately \$31.2 million and \$9.2 million, respectively. Revenues increased in all of our segments except our legacy oil and gas proppants segment. The increase in revenues was due primarily to increased average net sales prices in all segments except gypsum wallboard and recycled paperboard, which were flat and increased sales volumes in all segments except cement and aggregates. The reduction in revenues from our legacy oil and gas proppants business was due primarily to reduced sales volumes. Excluding revenues from the CRS and Skyway Acquisitions, increased net sales prices and sales volumes positively impacted net revenue during the quarter ended September 30, 2015, by approximately \$16.8 million and \$5.7 million, respectively.

Cost of Goods Sold. Cost of goods sold was \$284.7 million and \$209.7 million during the three months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Of the \$75.0 million increase in cost of goods sold, approximately \$53.7 million and \$6.5 million of the increase related to the CRS and Skyway Acquisitions, respectively. The remaining \$14.8 million increase in cost of goods sold was related to increases in both sales volumes and operating costs, which increased cost of sales by approximately \$12.1 million and \$2.7 million, respectively. The increase in operating costs in the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to September 30, 2014, was primarily related to our paperboard and concrete and aggregates businesses and was approximately \$2.5 million and \$1.9 million, respectively, partially offset by decreased operating costs in our gypsum wallboard business of approximately \$2.1 million. Cost of goods sold includes an impairment charge of \$28.4 million of intangible assets (customer contracts) generated from the CRS Acquisition and a write-down of \$9.4 million in raw sand inventory values associated primarily with downward revaluation of raw sand inventory that CRS Proppants purchased from a third party pursuant to a purchase contract entered into in connection with the plant expansion. We have fulfilled our obligations under this purchase contract.

Cost of goods sold was \$508.6 million and \$419.6 million during the six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Of the \$89.0 million increase in cost of goods sold, approximately \$77.3 million and \$6.5 million of the increase related to the CRS and Skyway Acquisitions, respectively. The remaining \$5.2 million increase in cost of goods sold was related to increased sales volumes, which increased cost of sales by approximately \$5.1 million, respectively. Operating costs for the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to September 30, 2014, increased for our paperboard and concrete and aggregates businesses by approximately \$1.3 million and \$3.5 million, respectively, partially offset by decreased operating costs in our cement and gypsum wallboard business of approximately \$0.9 million and \$4.0 million, respectively. Cost of goods sold includes an impairment charge of \$28.4 million of intangible assets (customer contracts) generated from the CRS Acquisition and a write-down of \$9.4 million in raw sand inventory values associated primarily with downward revaluation of raw sand inventory that CRS Proppants purchased from a third party pursuant to a purchase contract entered into in connection with the plant expansion. We have fulfilled our obligations under this purchase contract.

Gross Profit. Gross profit was \$44.3 million and \$75.1 million during the three months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The 41% decrease in gross profit was due primarily to a \$28.4 million impairment of customer contract intangible assets and increased operating costs, including the \$9.4 million write-down of working capital, partially offset by increased average sales prices, as noted above. The gross margin for the three months ended September 30, 2015 declined to 13%, compared to 26% for the three months ended September 30, 2014, primarily due to the \$28.4 million impairment of customer contract intangibles and the write-down of \$9.4 million in raw sand inventory. Excluding this expense, the gross margin for the three months ended September 30, 2015 would have been relatively consistent with the gross margin for the three months ended September 30, 2014.

Gross profit was \$105.4 million and \$131.5 million during the six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The 20% decrease in gross profit was due primarily to a \$28.4 million impairment of customer contract intangible assets and increased operating costs, including the \$9.4 million write-down of working capital, partially offset by increased average sales prices, as noted above. The gross margin for the six months ended September 30, 2015 declined to 17%, compared to 24% for the six months ended September 30, 2014, primarily

due to the \$28.4 million impairment of customer contract intangibles and the write-down of \$9.4 million in raw sand inventory. Excluding this expense, the gross margin for the six months ended September 30, 2015 would have been relatively consistent with the gross margin for the six months ended September 30, 2014.

Equity in Earnings of Joint Venture. Equity in earnings of our unconsolidated joint venture decreased \$0.4 million, or 3%, for the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the similar period in 2014. The decrease is primarily due to a 17% decrease in sales volumes and an increase in operating cost, partially offset by a 7% increase in average net sales price. The sales volume decline was driven by reduced demand for oil well cement. The impact of the decrease in sales volumes and increase in operating costs on equity in earnings of our unconsolidated joint venture during the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2014, was approximately \$2.0 million and \$0.3 million, respectively, partially offset by an increase in average net sales price of approximately \$1.9 million.

Equity in earnings of our unconsolidated joint venture decreased \$2.3 million, or 11%, for the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the similar period in 2014. The decrease is primarily due to a 21% decrease in sales volumes and an increase in operating costs, partially offset by a 9% increase in average net sales price. The decrease in sales volumes during the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the six months ended September 30, 2014, was due primarily to above average rainfall during April and May 2015, and reduced demand for oil well cement. The impact of the decrease in sales volumes and increase in operating cost on equity in earnings of our unconsolidated joint venture during the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the six months ended September 30, 2014, was approximately \$4.5 million and \$2.5 million, respectively, partially offset by an increase in average net sales price of approximately \$4.6 million. The increase in operating costs was primarily due to an increase in maintenance costs of approximately \$2.0 million.

Corporate General and Administrative. Corporate general and administrative expenses increased 26% and 27% for the three and six months ended September 30, 2015, respectively, compared to the similar periods in 2014. The approximately \$2.0 million and \$3.9 million increase in corporate general and administrative expenses for the three and six months ended September 30, 2015, respectively, compared to 2014, is due primarily to an increase in equity incentive compensation expense. Equity incentive compensation increased approximately \$0.7 million and \$1.9 million during the three and six months ended September 30, 2015, respectively, compared to 2014, primarily due to the Fiscal 2016 Employee Restricted Stock Awards and increased operating earnings from most of our segments. Additionally, legal expense increased approximately \$0.5 million and \$0.4 million during the three and six months ended September 30, 2015, respectively, compared to the similar period in 2014, primarily due to the legal issues discussed in Footnote (P) to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.

Acquisition and Litigation Expense. Acquisition and litigation expense consist primarily of approximately \$1.7 million of litigation expenses related to our lawsuit against the IRS. This lawsuit was settled in January 2015. The remaining expense is due to the CRS Acquisition, which closed in November 2014.

Other Income. Other income consists of a variety of items that are non-segment operating in nature and includes non-inventoried aggregates income, gypsum wallboard distribution center income, asset sales and other miscellaneous income and cost items.

Interest Expense, Net. Interest expense, net, increased approximately \$0.4 million and \$0.9 million during the three and six months ended September 30, 2015, respectively, compared to the three and six months ended September 30, 2014. The 11% increase in interest expense, net for both of the three and six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the similar three and six months in the prior fiscal year, is due primarily to the increase in interest expense from our Credit Facility, which increased approximately \$0.8 million and \$1.6 million in the three and six months ended September 30, 2015, respectively, compared to the three and six months ended September 30, 2014, partially offset by decreased interest from our Senior Notes and our lawsuit with the IRS. The increase in interest expense from our Credit Facility is due to greater outstanding balances during the three and six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the three and six months ended September 30, 2014, as a

result of borrowings made to finance the CRS Acquisition in November 2014 and the Skyway Acquisition in July 2015. Because of the borrowings to finance the CRS and Skyway Acquisitions, we expect interest expense to increase during fiscal 2016 compared to fiscal 2015. Additionally, interest expense from our Senior Notes decreased \$0.1 million and \$0.3 million during the three and six months ended September 30, 2015, respectively, compared to the three and six months ended September 30, 2014, due to the maturity and repayment of \$9.5 million during October 2014. We also had approximately \$0.2 million and \$0.4 million of interest expense during the three and six months ended September 30, 2014, respectively, related to an outstanding lawsuit with the IRS that was settled in January 2015.

Earnings Before Income Taxes. Earnings before income taxes were \$42.8 million and \$74.6 million during the three months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The decrease was primarily due to an approximately \$30.8 million decrease in gross profit, an approximate \$0.4 million decrease in equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint venture, an increase in interest expense, net of approximately \$0.4 million and an increase of approximately \$2.0 million in corporate general and administrative expenses.

Earnings before income taxes were \$98.7 million and \$130.4 million during the six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The decrease was primarily due to an approximately \$26.1 million decrease in gross profit, an approximate \$2.4 million decrease in equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint venture, an increase in interest expense, net of approximately \$0.8 million and an increase of approximately \$3.9 million in corporate general and administrative expenses.

Income Taxes. Income tax expense was \$31.1 million and \$42.3 million for the six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The estimated effective tax rate for fiscal 2015, compared to fiscal 2014, remained consistent at approximately 32%.

Net Earnings and Diluted Earnings per Share. Net earnings for the quarter ended September 30, 2015 of approximately \$29.8 million decreased 41% compared to net earnings for the quarter ended September 30, 2014 of approximately \$50.3 million; while net earnings of \$67.6 million decreased 23% compared to net earnings for the six months ended September 30, 2014 of \$88.0 million. Diluted earnings per share for the three and six months ended September 30, 2015 were \$0.59 and \$1.34, respectively, compared to diluted earnings per share of \$1.00 and \$1.75 for the three and six months ended September 30, 2014.

The following table highlights certain operating information related to our five business segments:

		For the Th Ended Sep		30,			For the Si Ended Sep		r 30,	
		2015		2014	Percentage Change		2015		2014	Percentage
Revenues (1)		(In thousands	except	per unit)	Change		(In thousands e	except	per unit)	Change
Cement ⁽²⁾	\$	164,790	\$	145,861	13%	\$	292,966	\$	273,797	7%
Gypsum Wallboard	-	119,701	+	111,655	7%	+	234,753	-	224,332	5%
Recycled Paperboard		39,145		35,579	10%		74,463		73,058	2%
Oil and Gas Proppants		18,307		10,414	76%		41,132		21,594	90%
Concrete and Aggregates		36,671		31,961	15%		65,203		58,123	12%
Gross Revenues		378,614		335,470	13%		708,517		650,904	9%
Less: Intersegment Revenues		(20,090)		(17,523)	15%		(38,019)		(34,128)	11%
Less: Joint Venture Revenues		(29,536)		(33,139)	(11%)		(56,547)		(65,717)	(14%)
	\$	328,988	\$	284,808	16%	\$	613,951	\$	551,059	11%
Sales Volume										
Cement (M Tons) ⁽²⁾		1,484		1,476	1%		2,687		2,767	(3%)
Gypsum Wallboard (MMSF)		619		567	9%		1,196		1,136	5%
Recycled Paperboard (M Tons)		75		70	7%		144		142	1%
Concrete (M Yards)		324		286	13%		573		521	10%
Aggregates (M Tons)		764		872	(12%)		1,431		1,690	(15%)
Average Net Sales Prices ⁽³⁾										
Cement ⁽²⁾	\$	97.21	\$	90.20	8%	\$	97.74	\$	90.42	8%
Gypsum Wallboard		157.88		160.09	(1%)		160.57		160.92	-
Recycled Paperboard		505.12		501.27	1%		504.49		505.52	-
Concrete		92.07		86.74	6%		92.06		85.73	7%
Aggregates		8.50		7.82	9%		8.24		7.61	8%
Operating Earnings										
Cement ⁽²⁾	\$	48,577	\$	38,450	26%	\$	74,290	\$	58,957	26%
Gypsum Wallboard		40,002		37,002	8%		80,896		74,430	9%
Recycled Paperboard		8,138		7,984	2%		14,168		15,531	(9%)
Oil and Gas Proppants		(44,600)		711	-		(50,236)		74	-
Concrete and Aggregates		3,857		2,965	30%		5,783		4,321	34%
Other, net		572		883	(35%)		1,007		1,562	(36%)
Net Operating Earnings	\$	56,546	\$	87,995	(36%)	\$	125,908	\$	154,875	(19%)

(1) Gross revenue, before freight and delivery costs.

(2) Includes proportionate share of our Joint Venture.

(3) Net of freight and delivery costs.

Cement Operations. Cement revenues were \$164.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015, which is a 13% increase over revenues of \$145.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014. Approximately \$9.2 million of the increase in revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2014, was related to the Skyway Acquisition. The remaining increase in revenue during the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2014, is primarily due to an 8% increase in average net sales prices and a 1% increase in sales volumes. The increase in average net sales prices and sales volumes during the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2014 positively impacted cement revenues by approximately \$8.8 million and \$0.9 million, respectively.

Cement operating earnings increased 26% to \$48.6 million from \$38.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Approximately \$2.7 million of the increase in operating earnings for the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2014, was related to the Skyway Acquisition. The remaining increase in operating earnings was due primarily to increased

average net sales prices, which positively impacted operating earnings by approximately \$8.8 million, partially offset by increased operating costs of approximately \$1.4 million. The increase in operating costs in the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to September 30, 2014, is primarily related maintenance and purchased raw materials, which negatively impacted operating margin by approximately \$1.0 million and \$1.6 million respectively. Additionally, the percentage of purchased cement sold during the three months ended September 30, 2015 declined approximately 3% from purchased cement sold during September 30, 2014, which positively impacted our operating earnings by approximately \$1.1 million. The operating margin increased to 29% for the second quarter of fiscal 2016, compared to 26% for the second quarter of fiscal 2015, primarily due to increased sales prices and a reduction in the percentage of sales of lower margin purchased cement.

Cement revenues were \$293.0 million for the six months ended September 30, 2015, which is a 7% increase over revenues of \$273.8 million for the six months ended September 30, 2014. Approximately \$9.2 million of the increase in revenues for the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the six months ended September 30, 2014, was related to the Skyway Acquisition. The remaining increase in revenue during the six months ended September 30, 2015 compared to the six months ended September 30, 2014, is primarily due to an 8% increase in average net sales prices, partially offset by a 3% decrease in sales volumes. The increase in average net sales prices during the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the six months ended September 30, 2014 positively impacted cement revenues by approximately \$18.1 million, while the decrease in sales volumes negatively impacted cement revenues by approximately \$8.1 million. The decrease in sales volumes during the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the six months ended September 30, 2014 was primarily related to above average rainfall during April and May 2015 in our Texas, Oklahoma and Colorado markets.

Cement operating earnings increased 26% to \$74.3 million from \$59.0 million for the six months ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Approximately \$2.7 million of the increase in operating earnings for the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2014, was related to the Skyway Acquisition. The remaining increase in operating earnings was due primarily to increased average net sales prices, which positively impacted operating earnings by approximately \$18.1 million, partially offset by decreased sales volumes and increased operating costs of approximately \$3.5 million and \$2.0 million. The increase in operating costs in the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to September 30, 2014, is primarily related to increased maintenance, which adversely impacted operating earnings by approximately \$6.8 million, partially offset by decreased energy costs of approximately \$2.8 million. The increase in maintenance costs was due primarily to a shift in the timing of some of our annual maintenance outages, which adversely impacted operating earnings by approximately \$3.0 million during the first quarter of fiscal 2016, compared to the first quarter of fiscal 2015. Additionally, the percentage of purchased cement sold during the six months ended September 30, 2015 declined approximately 2% from purchased cement sold during September 30, 2014, which positively impacted our operating earnings by approximately \$1.9 million. The operating margin increased to 25% for the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to 22% for the six months ended September 30, 2014, primarily due to increased sales prices and a reduction in the percentage of sales of lower margin purchased cement.

Gypsum Wallboard Operations. Sales revenues increased 7% to \$119.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015, from \$111.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014, primarily due to a 9% increase in sales volumes, partially offset by a 1% decrease in average net sales price. The increase in sales volumes positively impacted revenues by approximately \$10.2 million, while the decrease in average net sales price negatively impacted revenue by an approximately \$2.2 million. The increased sales volumes are primarily due to increased construction activity in fiscal 2016, compared to fiscal 2015. Our market share was essentially unchanged during the last year.

Operating earnings increased to \$40.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to \$37.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014, primarily due to the increase in our sales volumes and reduced operating costs, which positively impacted operating earnings by approximately \$3.2 million and \$2.0 million, respectively, partially offset by reduced average net sales prices, which adversely impacted

operating earnings by approximately \$2.2 million. The decrease in operating costs during the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2014, was primarily due to reduced freight, natural gas and other raw materials costs, which positively impacted operating earnings by \$0.8 million, \$1.2 million and \$0.5 million, respectively, partially offset by increased maintenance costs of approximately \$0.9 million. Our operating margin remained flat at 33% for both of the three months ended September 30, 2015, and 2014. Fixed costs are not a significant part of the overall cost of wallboard; therefore, changes in utilization have a relatively minor impact on our operating cost per unit.

Sales revenues increased 5% to \$234.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015, from \$224.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014, primarily due to a 5% increase in sales volumes. The increase in sales volumes positively impacted revenues by approximately \$11.8 million, partially offset by a decline in average net sales prices, which adversely impacted revenues by approximately \$1.4 million. The increased sales volumes are primarily due to increased construction activity in fiscal 2016, compared to fiscal 2015. Our market share was essentially unchanged during the last year.

Operating earnings increased to \$80.9 million for the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to \$74.4 million for the six months ended September 30, 2014, primarily due to the increase in our sales volumes and reduced operating costs, which positively impacted operating earnings by approximately \$3.9 million and \$4.0 million, respectively, partially offset by reduced average net sales prices, which adversely impacted operating earnings by approximately \$1.4 million. The decrease in operating costs during the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the six months ended September 30, 2014, was primarily due to reduced freight, natural gas and other raw materials costs, which positively impacted operating earnings by \$0.9 million, \$1.4 million and \$0.9 million, respectively, partially offset by increased maintenance costs of approximately \$1.3 million. Our operating margin increased to 34% for the six months ended September 30, 2014, primarily due to the reduction in operating costs. Fixed costs are not a significant part of the overall cost of wallboard; therefore, changes in utilization have a relatively minor impact on our operating cost per unit.

Recycled Paperboard Operations. Revenues increased 10% to \$39.1 million during the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to \$35.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014. The increase in revenues during the quarter ended September 30, 2015 compared to September 30, 2014, is due primarily to the 7% and 1% increase in sales volume and average net sales price, respectively, which positively impacted revenue by approximately \$2.5 million and \$1.0 million, respectively.

Operating earnings increased to \$8.1 million for the second quarter of fiscal 2016, compared to \$8.0 million for the second quarter of fiscal 2015. The increase in operating earnings is primarily due to increased sales volumes and average net sales price, which positively impacted operating earnings by approximately \$1.6 million, \$1.0 million, respectively, partially offset by increased operating costs, which adversely impacted operating earnings by approximately \$2.5 million. The increase in operating costs is primarily related to increased recycled fiber costs, which negatively impacted operating earnings by approximately \$0.4 million, respectively. The increase in operating costs was the primary reason operating margin decreased to 21% during the second quarter of fiscal 2016, compared to 22% during the second quarter of fiscal 2015.

Revenues increased 2% to \$74.5 million during the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to \$73.1 million for the six months ended September 30, 2014. The increase in revenues during the six months ended September 30, 2015 compared to the six months ended September 30, 2014, is due primarily to the 1% increase in sales volume, which positively impacted revenue by approximately \$1.6 million. Average net sales prices remained consistent for the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the six months ended September 30, 2014.

Operating earnings decreased to \$14.2 million for the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to \$15.5 million for the six months ended September 30, 2014. The decrease in operating earnings is primarily due

to increased operating costs, which negatively impacted operating earnings by approximately \$1.4 million, partially offset by increased sales volumes, which positively impacted operating earnings by \$0.1 million. The increase in operating costs is primarily related to increased recycled fiber, which negatively impacted operating earnings by approximately \$2.2 million, partially offset by lower natural gas costs, which positively impacted operating earnings by approximately \$2.2 million, partially offset by lower natural gas costs, which positively impacted operating earnings by approximately \$0.6 million. The increase in operating costs was the primary reason operating margin decreased to 19% during the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to 21% during the six months ended September 30, 2014.

Concrete and Aggregates Operations. Concrete and aggregates revenues increased 15% to \$36.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to \$32.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014. The primary reason for the increase in revenue for the second quarter of fiscal 2016, compared to the second quarter of fiscal 2015, was the 6% and 9% increase in average net sales prices for concrete and aggregates, respectively, which positively impacted revenues by approximately \$2.3 million. The increase in sales volumes by our concrete business was partially offset by lower sales volumes in our aggregates during the second quarter of fiscal 2016, compared to the second quarter of fiscal 2015, and positively impacted revenues by approximately \$2.4 million.

Operating earnings increased 30% to approximately \$3.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to \$3.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2014. Operating earnings were positively impacted by increased average net sales prices and sales volumes, which positively impacted operating earnings by approximately \$2.3 million and \$0.5 million, respectively, partially offset by increased operating costs of approximately \$1.9 million during the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2014. The increase in operating costs during the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2014, was primarily related to purchased materials, which adversely impacted operating earnings by approximately \$1.8 million.

Concrete and aggregates revenues increased 12% to \$65.2 million for the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to \$58.1 million for the six months ended September 30, 2014. The primary reason for the increase in revenue for the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the six months ended September 30, 2014, was the 7% and 8% increase in average net sales prices for concrete and aggregates, respectively, which positively impacted revenues by approximately \$4.7 million. The increase in sales volumes by our concrete business was partially offset by lower sales volumes in our aggregates during the second quarter of fiscal 2016, compared to the second quarter of fiscal 2015, and positively impacted revenues by approximately \$2.4 million.

Operating earnings increased 34% to approximately \$5.8 million for the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to \$4.3 million for the six months ended September 30, 2014. Operating earnings were positively impacted by increased average net sales prices and sales volumes, which positively impacted operating earnings by approximately \$4.7 million and \$0.3 million, respectively, partially offset by increased operating costs of approximately \$3.5 million during the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the six months ended September 30, 2014. The increase in operating costs during the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the six months ended September 30, 2014, was primarily related to purchased materials, which adversely impacted operating earnings by approximately \$3.1 million.

Oil and Gas Proppants. Revenues for our oil and gas proppants segment increased approximately \$7.9 million to \$18.3 million during the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to \$10.4 million during the three months ended September 30, 2014. Approximately \$12.5 million of the increase in revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2015 was related to the CRS Acquisition, partially offset by a decline in sales volumes and average net sales prices at our legacy facility in Corpus Christi which adversely impacted revenues by approximately \$3.8 million and \$0.8 million, respectively.

Operating loss for the three months ended September 30, 2015 was approximately \$44.6 million, compared to operating income of approximately \$0.7 million during the three months ended September 30, 2014. The

operating loss was primarily due to increased operating costs and reduced average net sales prices that impacted operating loss by \$39.7 million and \$6.6 million, respectively. Operating loss for the second quarter of fiscal 2016 includes an impairment charge of \$28.4 million of intangible assets (customer contracts) generated from the CRS Acquisition and a write-down of \$9.4 million in raw sand inventory values associated primarily with downward revaluation of raw sand inventory that CRS Proppants purchased from a third party pursuant to a purchase contract entered into in connection with the plant expansion. We have fulfilled our obligations under this purchase contract. The increase in operating loss during the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to September 30, 2014 was partially offset by increased sales volumes, which reduced the operating loss by approximately \$1.0 million.

Revenues for our oil and gas proppants segment increased approximately \$19.5 million to \$41.1 million during the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to \$21.6 million during the six months ended September 30, 2014. Approximately \$31.2 million of the increase in revenues for the six months ended September 30, 2015 was related to the CRS Acquisition, partially offset by a decline in sales volumes and average net sales prices at our legacy facility in Corpus Christi which adversely impacted revenues by approximately \$10.9 million and \$0.8 million, respectively.

Operating loss for the six months ended September 30, 2015 was approximately \$50.2 million, compared to operating income of approximately \$0.1 million during the six months ended September 30, 2014. The increased operating loss was primarily due to increased operating costs and reduced average net sales prices that increased the operating loss by \$38.2 million and \$11.8 million, respectively. Operating loss for the six months ended September 30, 2015 includes an impairment charge of \$28.4 million of intangible assets (customer contracts) generated from the CRS Acquisition and a write-down of \$9.4 million in raw sand inventory values associated primarily with downward revaluation of raw sand inventory that CRS Proppants purchased from a third party pursuant to a purchase contract entered into in connection with the plant expansion. We have fulfilled our obligations under this purchase contract.

GENERAL OUTLOOK

The drivers of construction products demand continue to improve incrementally, reinforcing the notion that a cyclic recovery is underway. The pace of recovery continues to hinge on the pace of growth in the U.S. economy. Our cement sales network stretches across the central U.S., both east to west and north to south. While we anticipate cement consumption to continue to increase during calendar 2015, each region will increase at a different pace. Cement markets are affected by infrastructure spending, industrial construction and residential building activity. We expect improvement to vary in each of our cement markets. During the first quarter of fiscal 2016, adverse weather in our Texas, Oklahoma and Colorado markets negatively impacted cement consumption in these markets. We anticipate that some of the reduced sales volumes will be recovered during the remainder of calendar 2015.

We do not necessarily anticipate significant increases in concrete and aggregate sales volumes in northern California. We are experiencing a recovery in both volume and price in our Austin, Texas markets, and expect price and volumes to continue to increase throughout calendar 2015. Demand in the greater Kansas City area is expected to be stable during calendar 2015, compared to calendar 2014.

Wallboard demand is heavily influenced by new residential housing construction as well as repair and remodeling. Most forecasts point to a continued pick-up in demand in both of these areas throughout calendar 2015. Industry shipments of gypsum wallboard exceeded 21.5 billion square feet in calendar 2014, and are expected to increase to 22.5 billion square feet in in calendar 2015.

We expect increased demand for gypsum wallboard to positively impact our recycled paperboard business as sales of higher priced gypsum paper are expected to continue to increase during fiscal 2016, compared to fiscal 2015, both in gross tons and as a percentage of total sales volumes.

The recent decline in oil rig count and well completion activity has adversely impacted oil and gas activity, leading to reduced demand and pricing for proppants. We expect these conditions to persist throughout calendar 2015 and into calendar 2016; however, we remain focused on strengthening our low-cost position and taking this opportunity to continue to build our low delivered cost position to targeted shale plays.

We will continue to consider the impact reduced oil prices and rig counts have on the operating performance of our oil and gas proppants business and, if necessary, determine whether these trends indicate additional impairment in the value of the tangible and intangible assets of this business. If market conditions continue to deteriorate, both in terms of oil pricing and increased rig counts, we will perform impairment tests to determine if any actual impairment has occurred.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to adopt accounting policies and make significant judgments and estimates to develop amounts reflected and disclosed in the financial statements. In many cases, there are alternative policies or estimation techniques that could be used. We maintain a thorough process to review the application of our accounting policies and to evaluate the appropriateness of the many estimates that are required to prepare our financial statements. However, even under optimal circumstances, estimates routinely require adjustment based on changing circumstances and the receipt of new or better information.

Information regarding our "Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates" can be found in our Annual Report. The five critical accounting policies that we believe either require the use of the most judgment, or the selection or application of alternative accounting policies, and are material to our financial statements, are those relating to long-lived assets, goodwill, environmental liabilities, accounts receivable and income taxes. Management has discussed the development and selection of these critical accounting policies and estimates with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors and with our independent registered public accounting firm. In addition, Note (A) to the financial statements in our Annual Report contains a summary of our significant accounting policies.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note (A) in the Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Form 10-Q for information regarding recently issued accounting pronouncements that may affect our financial statements.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flow.

The following table provides a summary of our cash flows:

		iths r 30,		
		2015		2014
		(dollars in		,
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	\$	107,589	\$	117,651
Investing Activities:				
Capital Expenditures		(55,869)		(40,039)
Skyway Acquisition		(32,427)		-
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities		(88,296)		(40,039)
Financing Activities:		_		
Decrease in Long-Term Debt		(3,000)		(69,000)
Dividends Paid		(10,061)		(10,019)
Shares Repurchased and Retired		(10,744)		-
Shares Repurchased to Settle Employee Taxes on RSUs		(1,728)		(1,299)
Proceeds from Stock Option Exercises		2,580		4,092
Excess Tax Benefits from Share Based Payment Arrangements		2,494		3,195
Net Cash Used In Financing Activities		(20,459)		(73,031)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash	\$	(1,166)	\$	4,581

Cash flows from operating activities decreased to \$107.6 million during the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to \$117.7 million during the similar period in 2014. This decrease was largely attributable to decreased cash flows from changes in operating assets and liabilities and reduced distributions from Joint Venture. Excluding the impact of inventory purchased in the Skyway Acquisition, cash flows from operations were negatively impacted during the six months ended September 30, 2015 by increases in accounts and notes receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities of approximately \$39.4 million and \$1.5 million, respectively, and a decrease in inventory and income taxes payable of approximately \$13.2 million and \$4.7 million, respectively. During the six months ended September 30, 2014, cash flows from operations were negatively impacted by increases in accounts and notes receivable and inventories of approximately \$29.8 million and \$3.6 million, respectively, partially offset by increases in accounts payable and accrued liabilities and notes receivable and accrued september \$10.9 million, \$11.1 million and \$2.8 million, respectively.

Working capital increased to \$212.2 million at September 30, 2015, compared to \$182.1 million at March 31, 2015, primarily due to the increased accounts and notes receivable and decreased accounts payable and accrued liabilities of approximately \$41.4 million and \$3.9 million, respectively, partially offset by increased income taxes payable and decreased inventories of approximately \$5.1 million and \$10.8 million, respectively. The increase in accounts receivable is due primarily to the increase in revenues during the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the six months ended September 30, 2014. The decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities is primarily due to increased accruals at year end for expected cement plant outages as well as certain construction payables related to our plant expansion in New Auburn, Wisconsin. The increase is income taxes payable during the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to September 30, 2014, is due to our ability to use previous overpayments to offset our liability at September 30, 2014. Working capital related to the Skyway Acquisition increased working capital at September 30, 2015 by approximately \$5.5 million, and primarily consisted of accounts receivable and inventory.

The increase in accounts and notes receivable at September 30, 2015, compared to March 31, 2015, is primarily due to increased sales revenue during the three months ended September 30, 2015, compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015. As a percentage of quarterly sales generated in the quarter then ended, accounts receivable were approximately 47% at September 30, 2015 and 51% at March 31, 2015. Management



measures the change in accounts receivable by monitoring the days sales outstanding on a monthly basis to determine if any deterioration has occurred in the collectability of the accounts receivable. No significant deterioration in the collectability of our accounts receivable in our construction products and building materials businesses was identified at September 30, 2015; however, we increased our allowance for doubtful accounts approximately \$2.0 million in recognition of the downturn in our oil and gas proppants business, and potential financial impact of this downturn on our customers. Notes receivable are monitored on an individual basis, and no significant deterioration in the collectability of notes receivable was identified at September 30, 2015.

Our inventory balance at September 30, 2015 declined approximately \$10.8 million from our inventory balance at March 31, 2015. Within our inventory, raw materials and materials-in-progress and finished cement decreased approximately \$7.6 million and \$2.2 million, respectively. The decrease in raw materials and materials-in-progress was due to the conversion of clinker inventory to meet sales demand and the write-down of \$9.4 million in raw sand inventory values associated primarily with downward revaluation of raw sand inventory that CRS Proppants purchased from a third party pursuant to a purchase contract entered into in connection with the plant expansion, partially offset by increased raw sand tonnage at September 30, 2015, compared to March 31, 2015. The decline in finished cement is consistent with our business cycle as we generally build inventory over the winter to meet the demand in the spring and summer. The largest individual balance in our inventory is our repair parts. These parts are necessary given the size and complexity of our manufacturing plants, as well as the age of certain of our plants, which creates the need to stock a high level of repair parts inventory. We believe all of these repair parts are necessary and we perform semi-annual analyses to identify obsolete parts. We have less than one year's sales of all product inventories, and our inventories have a low risk of obsolescence due to our products being basic construction materials.

Net cash used in investing activities during the six months ended September 30, 2015 was approximately \$88.3 million, compared to net cash used in investing activities of approximately \$40.0 million during the similar period in 2014, an increase of \$48.3 million. The increase in net cash used in investing activities is primarily related to the Skyway Acquisition and capital expenditures in our oil and gas proppants segment. We anticipate spending between \$20.0 million and \$25.0 million on sustaining capital expenditures for all of our businesses during fiscal 2016, which is consistent with historic levels.

Net cash used in financing activities was approximately \$20.5 million during the six months ended September 30, 2015, compared to net cash used in financing activities of approximately \$73.0 million during the similar period in 2014. This \$52.5 million decrease in net cash used in financing activities is primarily due to the reduction in repayments under the Credit Facility, due to the Skyway Acquisition and increased capital expenditures. Our debt-to-capitalization ratio and net-debt-to-capitalization ratio improved to 32.3% and 32.0%, respectively, at September 30, 2015, compared to 33.7% and 33.4%, respectively, at March 31, 2015.

Debt Financing Activities.

Bank Credit Facility

We have a \$500.0 million revolving credit facility (the "Credit Facility"), including a swingline loan sublimit of \$25.0 million, which is scheduled to expire on October 30, 2019. Borrowings under the Credit Facility are guaranteed by substantially all of the Company's subsidiaries. At the option of the Company, outstanding principal amounts on the Credit Facility bear interest at a variable rate equal to (i) LIBOR, plus an agreed margin (ranging from 100 to 225 basis points), which is to be established quarterly based upon the Company's ratio of consolidated EBITDA, defined as earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, to the Company's consolidated indebtedness (the "Leverage Ratio"), or (ii) an alternative base rate which is the higher of (a) the prime rate or (b) the federal funds rate plus ½% per annum plus an agreed margin (ranging from 0 to 125 basis points). Interest payments are payable, in the case of loans bearing interest at a rate based on the federal funds rate, quarterly, or in the case of loans bearing interest at a rate based on LIBOR, at the end of the LIBOR advance periods, which can be up to a period of nine months at the option of the Company. The Company is also required to pay a commitment fee on unused available borrowings under the Credit Facility

ranging from 10 to 35 basis points depending upon the Leverage Ratio. The Credit Facility contains customary covenants that restrict our ability to incur additional debt, encumber our assets, sell assets, make or enter into certain investments, loans or guaranties and enter into sale and leaseback arrangements. The Credit Facility also requires us to maintain a consolidated indebtedness ratio (calculated as consolidated indebtedness to consolidated earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, certain transaction-related deductions and other non-cash deductions) of 3.5:1.0 or less and an interest coverage ratio (consolidated earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, certain transaction-related deductions, amortization, certain transaction-related deductions and other non-cash deductions to consolidated interest expense) of at least 2.5:1.0. We had \$327.0 million of borrowings outstanding at September 30, 2015. Based on our Leverage Ratio, we had \$164.0 million of available borrowings, net of the outstanding letters of credit, at September 30, 2015.

The Credit Facility has a \$50.0 million letter of credit facility. Under the letter of credit facility, the Company pays a fee at a per annum rate equal to the applicable margin for Eurodollar loans in effect from time to time plus a one-time letter of credit fee in an amount equal to 0.125% of the initial stated amount. At September 30, 2015, we had \$9.0 million of letters of credit outstanding.

Senior Notes - We entered into a Note Purchase Agreement on November 15, 2005 (the "2005 Note Purchase Agreement") related to our sale of \$200 million of senior, unsecured notes, designated as Series 2005A Senior Notes (the "Series 2005A Senior Notes") in a private placement transaction. The Series 2005A Senior Notes, which are guaranteed by substantially all of our subsidiaries, were sold at par and issued in three tranches on November 15, 2005. Since entering into the 2005 Note Purchase Agreement, we have repurchased \$81.1 million in principal of the Series 2005A Senior Notes (in periods prior to the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013). During November 2012, Tranche A of the Series 2005A Senior Notes matured and we retired the remaining \$4.7 million in notes from this Tranche. Following these repurchases and maturities, the amounts outstanding for each of the remaining tranches are as follows:

	Principal	Maturity Date	Interest Rate
Tranche B	\$ 57.0 million	November 15, 2015	5.38%
Tranche C	\$ 57.2 million	November 15, 2017	5.48%

Interest for each tranche of Notes is payable semi-annually on the 15th day of May and the 15th day of November of each year until all principal is paid for the respective tranche.

We also entered into an additional Note Purchase Agreement on October 2, 2007 (the "2007 Note Purchase Agreement") related to our sale of \$200 million of senior, unsecured notes, designated as Series 2007A Senior Notes (the "Series 2007A Senior Notes") in a private placement transaction. The Series 2007A Senior Notes, which are guaranteed by substantially all of our subsidiaries, were sold at par and issued in four tranches on October 2, 2007. Since entering into the 2007 Note Purchase Agreement, we have repurchased \$122.0 million in principal of the Series 2007A Senior Notes (in periods prior to the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013). During October 2014, Tranche A of the Series 2007A Senior Notes matured and we retired the remaining \$9.5 million in notes from this Tranche. Following the repurchase, the amounts outstanding for each of the four tranches are as follows:

	 Principal	Maturity Date	Interest Rate
Tranche B	\$ 8.0 million	October 2, 2016	6.27%
Tranche C	\$ 24.0 million	October 2, 2017	6.36%
Tranche D	\$ 36.5 million	October 2, 2019	6.48%

Interest for each tranche of Notes is payable semi-annually on the second day of April and the second day of October of each year until all principal is paid for the respective tranche.

Our obligations under the 2005 Note Purchase Agreement and the 2007 Note Purchase Agreement (collectively referred to as the "Note Purchase Agreements") and the Series 2005A Senior Notes and the Series

2007A Senior Notes (collectively referred to as "the Senior Notes") are equal in right of payment with all other senior, unsecured debt of the Company, including our debt under the Credit Facility. The Note Purchase Agreements contain customary restrictive covenants, including covenants that place limits on our ability to encumber our assets, to incur additional debt, to sell assets, or to merge or consolidate with third parties, as well as certain cross covenants with the Credit Facility. We were in compliance with all financial ratios and tests at September 30, 2015.

Pursuant to a Subsidiary Guaranty Agreement, substantially all of our subsidiaries have guaranteed the punctual payment of all principal, interest, and Make-Whole Amounts (as defined in the Note Purchase Agreements) on the Senior Notes and the other payment and performance obligations of the Company contained in the Senior Notes and in the Note Purchase Agreements. We are permitted, at our option and without penalty, to prepay from time to time at least 10% of the original aggregate principal amount of the Senior Notes at 100% of the principal amount to be prepaid, together with interest accrued on such amount to be prepaid to the date of payment, plus a Make-Whole Amount. The Make-Whole Amount is computed by discounting the remaining scheduled payments of interest and principal of the Senior Notes being prepaid at a discount rate equal to the sum of 50 basis points and the yield to maturity of U.S. treasury securities having a maturity equal to the remaining average life of the Senior Notes being prepaid.

We are leasing one of our cement plants from the city of Sugar Creek, Missouri. The city of Sugar Creek issued industrial revenue bonds to partly finance improvements to the cement plant. The lease payments due to the city of Sugar Creek under the cement plant lease, which was entered into upon the sale of the industrial revenue bonds, are equal in amount to the payments required to be made by the city of Sugar Creek to the holders of the industrial revenue bonds. Because we are the holder of all of the outstanding industrial revenue bonds, no debt is reflected on our financial statements in connection with our lease of the cement plant. At the conclusion of the lease in fiscal 2021, we have the option to purchase the cement plant for a nominal amount.

Other than the Credit Facility, we have no other source of committed external financing in place. In the event the Credit Facility should be terminated, no assurance can be given as to our ability to secure a new source of financing. Consequently, if any balance were outstanding on the Credit Facility at the time of termination, and an alternative source of financing could not be secured; it would have a material adverse impact on us. None of our debt is rated by the rating agencies.

We do not have any off balance sheet debt, except for approximately \$50.0 million of operating leases, which have an average remaining term of approximately fifteen years. Also, we have no outstanding debt guarantees. We have available under the Credit Facility a \$50.0 million Letter of Credit Facility. At September 30, 2015, we had \$9.0 million of letters of credit outstanding that renew annually. We are contingently liable for performance under \$13.6 million in performance bonds relating primarily to our mining operations.

We believe that our cash flow from operations and available borrowings under our Credit Facility should be sufficient to meet our currently anticipated operating needs, capital expenditures and dividend and debt service requirements for at least the next twelve months. However, our future liquidity and capital requirements may vary depending on a number of factors, including market conditions in the construction industry, our ability to maintain compliance with covenants in our Credit Facility, the level of competition and general and economic factors beyond our control. These and other developments could reduce our cash flow or require that we seek additional sources of funding. We cannot predict what effect these factors will have on our future liquidity.

Dividends.

Dividends paid were \$10.1 million and \$10.0 million for the six month periods ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Each quarterly dividend payment is subject to review and approval by our Board of Directors, who will continue to evaluate our dividend payment amount on a quarterly basis.

Share Repurchases.

	Common Stock		
	Shares Purchased	Average Price Paid Per Share	
July 1 through July 31, 2015	-	\$ -	
August 1 through August 31, 2015	62,000	75.77	
September 1 through September 30, 2015	82,000	73.73	
Quarter 2 Totals	144,000	\$ 74.61	
Year-to-Date Totals	144,000	\$ 74.61	

On August 10, 2015, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase up to an additional 6,782,700 shares, for a total outstanding authorization of 7,500,000 shares. We repurchased 144,000 shares at an average price of \$74.61 during the three months ended September 30, 2015. We also purchased an additional 110,000 shares during the last week of September, which were not settled until the first week of October, and 130,000 shares during the first week of October 2015 at a combined average price of \$70.31. Including the shares purchased during the last week of September, which settled in the first week of October, and the shares purchased in early October, we have authorization to purchase an additional 7,116,000 shares.

Share repurchases may be made from time-to-time in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. The timing and amount of any repurchases of shares will be determined by management, based on its evaluation of market and economic conditions and other factors. In some cases, repurchases may be made pursuant to plans, programs or directions established from time to time by the Company's management, including plans intended to comply with the safe-harbor provided by Rule 10b5-1.

During the six months ended September 30, 2015, 21,043 shares of stock were withheld from employees upon the vesting of Restricted Shares that were granted under the Plan. These shares were withheld by us to satisfy the employees' minimum statutory tax withholding, which is required once the Restricted Shares or Restricted Shares Units are vested.

Capital Expenditures.

The following table compares capital expenditures:

			_	For the S Ended Sep		
	Ac	quisition		2015		2014
				(dollars in	thousand	s)
Land and Quarries	\$	2,290	\$	7,555	\$	2,610
Plants		18,331		32,541		26,554
Buildings, Machinery and Equipment		3,955		15,773		10,875
Total Capital Expenditures	\$	24,576	\$	55,869	\$	40,039

Historically, annual maintenance capital expenditures have been approximately \$20.0 to \$25.0 million, which we anticipate will be similar for fiscal 2016. Total capital expenditures for fiscal 2016, including sustaining capital expenditures, are expected to be approximately \$65.0 million to \$75.0 million. Historically, we have financed such expenditures with cash from operations and borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risks related to fluctuations in interest rates on our Credit Facility. From time-to-time we have utilized derivative instruments, including interest rate swaps, in conjunction with our overall strategy to manage the debt outstanding that is subject to changes in interest rates. We have a \$500.0 million Credit Facility available at September 30, 2015, under which borrowings bear interest at a variable rate. A hypothetical 100 basis point increase in interest rates on the \$327.0 million of borrowings at September 30, 2015 would increase our interest expense by approximately \$3.3 million on an annual basis. At present, we do not utilize derivative financial instruments.

We are subject to commodity risk with respect to price changes principally in coal, coke, natural gas and power. We attempt to limit our exposure to changes in commodity prices by entering into contracts or increasing our use of alternative fuels.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

We have established a system of disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information relating to the Company, which is required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act"), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC's rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, in a timely fashion. An evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) was performed as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report. This evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our CEO and CFO. Based upon that evaluation, our CEO and CFO have concluded that these disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

EPA Notice of Violation

On October 5, 2010, Region IX of the EPA issued a Notice of Violation and Finding of Violation ("NOV") alleging violations by our subsidiary, Nevada Cement Company ("NCC"), of the Clean Air Act ("CAA"). The NOV alleges that NCC made certain physical changes to its facility in the 1990s without first obtaining permits required by the Prevention of Significant Deterioration requirements and Title V permit requirements of the CAA. The EPA also alleges that NCC has failed to submit to the EPA since 2002 certain reports required by the National Emissions Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants General Provisions and the Portland Cement Manufacturing Industry Standards. On March 12, 2014, the EPA Region IX issued a second NOV to NCC. The second NOV is materially similar to the 2010 NOV except that it alleges violations of the new source performance standards ("NSPS") for Portland cement plants. The NOVs state that the EPA may seek penalties although it does not propose or assess any specific level of penalties or specify what relief the EPA will seek for the alleged violations. NCC believes it has meritorious defenses to the allegations in the NOVs. NCC met with the EPA in December 2010, September 2012 and May 2014 to present its defenses and to discuss a resolution of the alleged violations. The EPA and NCC remain in discussions regarding the alleged violations. If a negotiated settlement cannot be reached, NCC intends to vigorously defend these matters in any enforcement action that may be pursued by the EPA. As a part of a settlement, or should NCC fail in its defense in any enforcement action, NCC could be required to make substantial capital expenditures to modify its facility and incur increased operating costs. NCC could also be required to pay significant civil penalties. Additionally, an enforcement action could take many years to resolve the underlying issues alleged in the NOV. We are currently unable to determine the final outcome of this matter or the impact of an unfavorable determination upon our financial position or results of operations.

Domestic Wallboard Antitrust Litigation

Since late December 2012, several purported class action lawsuits were filed in various United States District Courts, including the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, Western District of North Carolina and the Northern District of Illinois, against the Company's subsidiary, American Gypsum Company LLC ("American Gypsum"), alleging that American Gypsum conspired with other wallboard manufacturers to fix the price for drywall sold in the United States in violation of federal antitrust laws and, in some cases related provisions of state law. The complaints allege that the defendant wallboard manufacturers conspired to increase prices through the announcement and implementation of coordinated price increases, output restrictions, and other restraints of trade, including the elimination of individual "job quote" pricing. In addition to American Gypsum, the defendants in these lawsuits include CertainTeed Corp., USG Corporation and United States Gypsum (together "USG"), New NGC, Inc., Lafarge North America, Temple Inland Inc. ("TIN") and PABCO Building Products LLC. On April 8, 2013, the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation ("JPML") transferred and consolidated all related cases to the Eastern District of Pennsylvania for coordinated pretrial proceedings.

On June 24, 2013, the direct and indirect purchaser plaintiffs filed consolidated amended class action complaints. The direct purchasers' complaint added the Company as a defendant. The plaintiffs in the consolidated class action lawsuits bring claims on behalf of purported classes of direct or indirect purchasers of wallboard from January 1, 2012 to the present for unspecified monetary damages (including treble damages) and in some cases injunctive relief. On July 29, 2013, the Company and American Gypsum answered the complaints, denying all allegations that they conspired to increase the price of drywall and asserting affirmative defenses to the plaintiffs' claims.

In 2014, USG and TIN entered into agreements with counsel representing the direct and indirect purchaser classes pursuant to which they agreed to settle all claims against them. On August 20, 2015, the court granted final approval of USG and TIN's settlements with the direct and indirect purchaser plaintiffs. At this stage we are unable to estimate the amount of any reasonably possible loss or range of reasonably possible losses associated with these lawsuits. American Gypsum denies the allegations in these lawsuits and will vigorously defend itself

against these claims. Defendants' motions for summary judgement were filed in the class actions in the first quarter of fiscal 2016.

On March 17, 2015, a group of homebuilders filed a complaint against the defendants, including American Gypsum, based upon the same conduct alleged in the consolidated class action complaints. On March 24, 2015, the JPML transferred this action to the multidistrict litigation already pending in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania.

In June 2015, American Gypsum and an employee received grand jury subpoenas from the United States District Court for the Western District of North Carolina seeking information regarding an investigation of the gypsum drywall industry by the Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice. We believe the investigation, although a separate proceeding, is related to the same subject matter at issue in the litigation described above and we intend to fully cooperate with government officials. Given its preliminary nature, we are currently unable to determine the ultimate outcome of such investigation.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

We are affected by the level of demand in the construction industry.

Demand for our construction products and building materials is directly related to the level of activity in the construction industry, which includes residential, commercial and infrastructure construction. While the most recent downturn in residential and commercial construction, which began in calendar 2007, materially impacted our business, certain economic fundamentals began improving in calendar 2012, and have continued to improve into calendar 2015; however, the rate and sustainability of such improvement remains uncertain. Infrastructure spending continues to be adversely impacted by a number of factors, including the budget constraints currently being experienced by federal, state and local governments. Any decrease in the amount of government funds available for such projects or any decrease in construction activity in general (including any weakness in residential construction or commercial construction) could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our business is seasonal in nature, and this causes our quarterly results to vary significantly.

A majority of our business is seasonal with peak revenues and profits occurring primarily in the months of April through November when the weather in our markets is more suitable for construction activity. Quarterly results have varied significantly in the past and are likely to vary significantly in the future. Such variations could have a negative impact on the price of our common stock.

We are subject to the risk of unfavorable weather conditions, particularly during peak construction periods, as well as other unexpected operational difficulties.

Unfavorable weather conditions, such as snow, hurricanes, tropical storms and heavy rainfall, can reduce construction activity and adversely affect demand for construction products. Such weather conditions can also increase our costs, reduce our production or impede our ability to transport our products in an efficient and cost-effective manner. Similarly, operational difficulties, such as business interruption due to required maintenance, capital improvement projects or loss of power, can increase our costs and reduce our production. In particular, the occurrence of unfavorable weather conditions and other unexpected operational difficulties during peak construction periods could adversely affect operating income and cash flow and could have a disproportionate impact on our results of operations for the full year.

We and our customers participate in cyclical industries and regional markets, which are subject to industry downturns.

A majority of our revenues are from customers who are in industries and businesses that are cyclical in nature and subject to changes in general economic conditions. For example, many of our customers operate in the construction industry, which is affected by a variety of factors, such as general economic conditions, changes in



interest rates, demographic and population shifts, levels of infrastructure spending and other factors beyond our control. In addition, since our operations are in a variety of geographic markets, our businesses are subject to differing economic conditions in each such geographic market. Economic downturns in the industries to which we sell our products or localized downturns in the regions where we have operations generally have an adverse effect on demand for our products and adversely affect the collectability of our receivables. In general, any downturns in these industries or regions could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our products are commodities, which are subject to significant changes in supply and demand and price fluctuations.

The products sold by us are commodities and competition among manufacturers is based largely on price. Prices are often subject to material changes in response to relatively minor fluctuations in supply and demand, general economic conditions and other market conditions beyond our control. Increases in the production capacity of industry participants for products such as gypsum wallboard or cement or increases in cement imports tend to create an oversupply of such products leading to an imbalance between supply and demand, which can have a negative impact on product prices. Currently, there continues to be significant excess capacity in the gypsum wallboard industry in the United States. There can be no assurance that prices for products sold by us will not decline in the future or that such declines will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our Oil and Gas Proppants business and financial performance depends on the level of activity in the oil and natural gas industries.

Our operations that produce frac sand are materially dependent on the levels of activity in natural gas and oil exploration, development and production. More specifically, the demand for the frac sand we produce is closely related to the number of natural gas and oil wells completed in geological formations where sand-based proppants are used in fracture treatments. These activity levels are affected by both shortand long-term trends in natural gas and oil prices. In recent years, natural gas and oil prices and, therefore, the level of exploration, development and production activity, have experienced significant fluctuations. Worldwide economic, political and military events, including war, terrorist activity, events in the Middle East and initiatives by the Organization of the Petroleum Exporting Countries ("OPEC"), have contributed, and are likely to continue to contribute, to price volatility. Additionally, warmer than normal winters in North America and other weather patterns may adversely impact the short-term demand for natural gas and, therefore, demand for our products. Reduction in demand for natural gas to generate electricity could also adversely impact the demand for frac sand. A prolonged reduction in natural gas and oil prices would generally depress the level of natural gas and oil exploration, development, production and well completion activity and result in a corresponding decline in the demand for the frac sand we produce. In addition, any future decreases in the rate at which oil and natural gas reserves are discovered or developed, whether due to increased governmental regulation, limitations on exploration and drilling activity or other factors, could have material adverse effect on our oil and gas proppants business, even in a stronger natural gas and oil price environment.

Volatility and disruption of financial markets could affect access to credit.

Difficult economic conditions can cause a contraction in the availability, and increase the cost, of credit in the marketplace. A number of our customers or suppliers have been and may continue to be adversely affected by unsettled conditions in capital and credit markets, which in some cases have made it more difficult or costly for them to finance their business operations. These unsettled conditions have the potential to reduce the sources of liquidity for the Company and our customers.

Our and our customers' operations are subject to extensive governmental regulation, including environmental laws, which can be costly and burdensome.

Our operations and those of our customers are subject to and affected by federal, state and local laws and regulations with respect to such matters as land usage, street and highway usage, noise level and health and safety

and environmental matters. In many instances, various certificates, permits or licenses are required in order for us or our customers to conduct business or carry out construction and related operations. Although we believe that we are in compliance in all material respects with applicable regulatory requirements, there can be no assurance that we will not incur material costs or liabilities in connection with regulatory requirements or that demand for our products will not be adversely affected by regulatory issues affecting our customers. In addition, future developments, such as the discovery of new facts or conditions, the enactment or adoption of new or stricter laws or regulations or stricter interpretations of existing laws or regulations, may impose new liabilities on us, require additional investment by us or prevent us from opening, expanding or modifying plants or facilities, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

For example, GHGs currently are regulated as pollutants under the CAA and subject to reporting and permitting requirements. Future consequences of GHG permitting requirements and potential emission reduction measures for our operations may be significant because (1) the cement manufacturing process requires the combustion of large amounts of fuel, (2) in our cement manufacturing process, the production of carbon dioxide is a byproduct of the calcination process, whereby carbon dioxide is removed from calcium carbonate to produce calcium oxide, and (3) our gypsum wallboard manufacturing process combusts a significant amount of fossil fuel, especially natural gas. In addition, the EPA has proposed to regulate GHG emissions from existing fossil fuel-fired power plants as a result of the EPA's promulgation of new source performance standards for the same sources. In the future, the EPA is expected to propose new source performance standards for cement manufacturing, which similarly will trigger a requirement for the EPA to promulgate regulations relating to existing cement manufacturing facilities. The timing of such regulation is uncertain.

On September 9, 2010, the EPA finalized National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants, or NESHAP, for Portland cement plants ("PC NESHAP"). The PC NESHAP will require a significant reduction in emissions of certain hazardous air pollutants from Portland cement kilns. The PC NESHAP sets limits on mercury emissions from existing Portland cement kilns and increases the stringency of emission limits for new kilns. The PC NESHAP also sets emission limits for total hydrocarbons, particulate matter (as a surrogate for metal pollutants) and acid gases from cement kilns of all sizes. The PC NESHAP was scheduled to take full effect in September 2013; however, as a result of a decision by the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit in *Portland Cement Ass'n. v. EPA*, 655 F.3d 177 (D.C. Cir.) arising from industry challenges to the PC NESHAP, the EPA proposed a settlement agreement with industry petitioners in May 2012. In February 2013, the EPA published the final revised rule to the PC NESHAP which extended the compliance date until September 9, 2015 for existing cement kilns and made certain changes to the rules governing particulate matter monitoring methods and emissions limits, among other revisions. The 2013 revised rule was challenged in the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit and on April 18, 2014, the court vacated the affirmative defense provision. The court upheld the EPA's particulate matter emission standards and extended compliance date. On November 19, 2014, the EPA proposed a rule removing the affirmative defense provision and making minor technical corrections to the regulations. The PC NESHAP will materially increase capital costs of production for the Company and the industry as a whole.

On March 21, 2011 the EPA proposed revised Standards of Performance for New Sources and Emissions Guidelines for Existing Sources for Commercial/Industrial Solid Waste Incinerators (the "CISWI Rule") per Section 129 of the Clean Air Act, which created emission standards for 4 subcategories of industrial facilities, one of which is "Waste Burning Kilns." The EPA simultaneously stayed the CISWI Rule for further reconsideration. On February 12, 2013, the EPA finalized revisions to the CISWI Rule. For those cement kilns that utilize non-hazardous secondary materials ("NHSM") as defined in a rule first finalized on March 21, 2011 (and slightly revised on February 12, 2013), the CISWI Rule will require significant reductions in emissions of certain pollutants from applicable cement kilns. The CISWI Rule sets forth emission standards for mercury, carbon monoxide, acid gases, nitrogen oxides, sulfur dioxide, certain metals (lead and cadmium) and more stringent standards than PC NESHAP for particulate matter and dioxin/furans. The CISWI Rule as currently promulgated may materially increase capital costs and costs for production but only for those facilities that will be using applicable solid wastes as fuel. The compliance date for this rule is expected to be March 1, 2018 (either 3 years after State CISWI plan approval, or 5 years from the date of the final CISWI Rule, whichever is sooner). It is

anticipated that the CISWI Rule may materially increase capital costs and costs of production for the Company and the industry as a whole.

On April 17, 2015, the EPA published its final rule addressing the storage, reuse and disposal of coal combustion products, which include fly ash and flue gas desulfurization gypsum ("synthetic gypsum"). We use synthetic gypsum in wallboard manufactured at our Georgetown, South Carolina plant. The rule, which applies only to electric utilities and independent power producers, establishes standards for the management of coal combustion residuals (CCRs) under Subtitle D of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, or RCRA, which is the Subtitle that regulates non-hazardous wastes. The rule imposes requirements addressing CCR surface impoundments and landfills, including location restrictions, design and operating specifications, groundwater monitoring requirements, corrective action requirements, recordkeeping and reporting obligations, and closure requirements. Beneficial encapsulated uses of CCRs, including synthetic gypsum, are exempt from regulation. The rule becomes effective on October 14, 2015, with many of the requirements phased in months or years after the effective date. Given the EPA's decision to continue to allow CCR to be used in synthetic gypsum and to regulate CCR under the non-hazardous waste sections of RCRA, we do not expect the rule to materially affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

On October 1, 2015, the EPA lowered the primary and secondary ozone standards from the current 8-hour standard of 75 parts per billion ("ppb") to 70 ppb. The EPA also strengthened the secondary ozone standard to improve protection for trees, plants and ecosystems. Like the primary standard, an area will meet the secondary standard if the fourth-highest maximum daily 8-hour ozone concentration per year, averaged over three years, is equal to or less than 70 ppb. The EPA based the secondary standard on the "W126 metric," an index designed to show the cumulative impact of ozone on plants and trees seasonally. The EPA has issued an implementation memo describing how it will determine whether the ozone levels in areas across the country, typically on a county level, are above the new standards. Areas above the new standards will be designated as "nonattainment;" areas at or below the new standards will be designated "attainment." In states with major emitting sources located in or near designated nonattainment areas, States will impose new and costly regulatory requirements. For areas that are determined to be in non-attainment, states will be required to develop plans to bring the areas into attainment by as early as 2020. At this time, it is not possible to whether any area in which we operate will be designated nonattainment. However, if that occurs, we may be required to meet new control requirements requiring significant capital expenditures for compliance.

The cement plants located in Kansas City, Missouri and Tulsa, Oklahoma are subject to certain obligations under a consent decree with the United States requiring the establishment of facility-specific emissions limitations for certain air pollutants. Not all specific limitations have been finalized; however, upon determination, these limitations, along with specific emissions limitations that have already been finalized, will apply to our operation of these cement plants. It is difficult to predict with reasonable certainty the impact of these limitations on the operations or operating costs of the Kansas City, Missouri and Tulsa, Oklahoma cement plants. Limitations that significantly restrict emissions levels beyond current operating levels may require additional investments by us or place limitations on operations, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

The cement plant in Tulsa, Oklahoma is subject to NESHAP for hazardous waste combustors (the "HWC MACT"), which imposes emission limitations and operating limits on cement kilns that are fueled by hazardous wastes. Compliance with the HWC MACT could impose additional liabilities on us or require additional investment by us, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations. In addition, new developments, such as new laws or regulations, may impose new liabilities on us, require additional investment by us or prevent us from operating or expanding plants or facilities, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations. For example, while the HWC MACT has not been updated since 2008, 73 Fed. Reg. 64068 (Oct. 28, 2008), future revisions to the HWC MACT regulations would apply to both of the cement kilns used at the cement plant in Tulsa, Oklahoma. Such revision could require new control requirements and significant capital expenditure for compliance. In 2013, the EPA adopted the final CISWI Rule (as discussed above) that likely will apply to the cement kiln used by the cement

plant in Sugar Creek, Missouri and the two cement kilns at Nevada Cement Company, and may impose new control requirements requiring significant capital expenditures for compliance. Existing CISWI units will need to comply with the CISWI Rule when it becomes effective, which is expected to occur in early 2018.

We may incur significant costs in connection with pending and future litigation.

We are, or may become, party to various lawsuits, claims, investigations and proceedings, including but not limited to personal injury, environmental, antitrust, tax, asbestos, property entitlements and land use, intellectual property, commercial, contract, product liability, health and safety, and employment matters. The outcome of pending or future lawsuits, claims, investigations or proceedings is often difficult to predict, but could be adverse and material in amount. In addition, the defense of these lawsuits, claims, investigations and proceedings may divert our management's attention and we may incur significant costs in defending these matters. See Part II Item 1. Legal Proceedings of this report.

Our results of operations are subject to significant changes in the cost and availability of fuel, energy and other raw materials.

Major cost components in each of our businesses are the costs of fuel, energy and raw materials. Significant increases in the costs of fuel, energy or raw materials or substantial decreases in their availability could materially and adversely affect our sales and operating profits. Prices for fuel, energy or raw materials used in connection with our businesses could change significantly in a short period of time for reasons outside our control. Prices for fuel and electrical power, which are significant components of the costs associated with our gypsum wallboard and cement businesses, have fluctuated significantly in recent years and may increase in the future. In the event of large or rapid increases in prices, we may not be able to pass the increases through to our customers in full, which would reduce our operating margin.

We may become subject to significant clean-up, remediation and other liabilities under applicable environmental laws.

Our operations are subject to state, federal and local environmental laws and regulations, which impose liability for cleanup or remediation of environmental pollution and hazardous waste arising from past acts. These laws and regulations also require pollution control and prevention, site restoration and operating permits and/or approvals to conduct certain of our operations or expand or modify our facilities. Certain of our operations may from time-to-time involve the use of substances that are classified as toxic or hazardous substances within the meaning of these laws and regulations. Additionally, any future laws or regulations addressing GHG emissions would likely have a negative impact on our business or results of operations, whether through the imposition of raw material or production limitations, fuel-use or carbon taxes emission limitations or reductions or otherwise. We are unable to estimate accurately the impact on our business or results of operations or any such law or regulation at this time. Risk of environmental liability (including the incurrence of fines, penalties or other sanctions or litigation liability) is inherent in the operation of our businesses. As a result, it is possible that environmental liabilities and compliance with environmental regulations could have a material adverse effect on our operations in the future.

Significant changes in the cost and availability of transportation could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Some of the raw materials used in our manufacturing processes, such as coal or coke, are transported to our facilities by truck or rail. In addition, transportation logistics play an important part in allowing us to supply products to our customers, whether by truck, rail or barge. For example, we deliver gypsum wallboard to many areas of the United States and the transportation costs associated with the delivery of our wallboard products represent a significant portion of the variable cost of our gypsum wallboard segment. Significant increases in the cost of fuel or energy can result in material increases in the cost of transportation, which could materially and adversely affect our operating profits. In addition, reductions in the availability of certain modes of transportation such as rail or trucking could limit our ability to deliver product and therefore materially and adversely affect our operating profits.

Our debt agreements contain restrictive covenants and require us to meet certain financial ratios and tests, which limit our flexibility and could give rise to a default if we are unable to remain in compliance.

Our Credit Facility and the Note Purchase Agreements governing our Senior Notes contain, among other things, covenants that limit our ability to finance future operations or capital needs or to engage in other business activities, including but not limited to our ability to:

- · Incur additional indebtedness;
- · Sell assets or make other fundamental changes;
- Engage in mergers and acquisitions;
- Pay dividends and make other restricted payments;
- · Make investments, loans, advances or guarantees;
- · Encumber our assets or those of our restricted subsidiaries;
- · Enter into transactions with our affiliates.

In addition, these agreements require us to meet and maintain certain financial ratios and tests, which may require that we take action to reduce our debt or to act in a manner contrary to our business objectives. Events beyond our control, including the changes in general business and economic conditions, may impair our ability to comply with these covenants or meet those financial ratios and tests. A breach of any of these covenants or failure to maintain the required ratios and meet the required tests may result in an event of default under these agreements. This may allow the lenders under these agreements to declare all amounts outstanding to be immediately due and payable, terminate any commitments to extend further credit to us and pursue other remedies available to them under the applicable agreements. If this occurs, our indebtedness may be accelerated and we may not be able to refinance the accelerated indebtedness on favorable terms, or at all, or repay the accelerated indebtedness. In general, the occurrence of any event of default under these agreements could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

We have incurred substantial indebtedness, which could adversely affect our business, limit our ability to plan for or respond to changes in our business and reduce our profitability.

Our future ability to satisfy our debt obligations is subject, to some extent, to financial, market, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control. Our substantial debt obligations could have negative consequences to our business, and in particular could impede, restrict or delay the implementation of our business strategy or prevent us from entering into transactions that would otherwise benefit our business. For example:

- we may be required to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flows from operations to payments on our indebtedness, thereby reducing the availability of our cash flow for other purposes, including business development efforts, capital expenditures or strategic acquisitions;
- we may not be able to generate sufficient cash flow to meet our substantial debt service obligations or to fund our other liquidity needs. If this occurs, we may have to take actions such as selling assets, selling equity or reducing or delaying capital expenditures, strategic acquisitions, investments and joint ventures or restructuring our debt;
- as a result of the amount of our outstanding indebtedness and the restrictive covenants to which we are subject, if we determine that we require additional financing to fund future working capital, capital investments or other business activities, we may not be able to obtain such financing on commercially reasonable terms, or at all; and
- our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and industry may be limited, thereby placing us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less indebtedness.

As of September 30, 2015, the aggregate principal amount of our debt instruments with exposure to interest rate risk was approximately \$327.0 million. As of the same date, each change in interest rates of 100 basis points would result in an approximate \$3.3 million change in our annual cash interest expense before any principal payment on our financial instruments with exposure to interest rate risk. As a result, increases in interest rates will

increase the cost of servicing our financial instruments with exposure to interest rate risk and could materially reduce our profitability and cash flows.

Our production facilities may experience unexpected equipment failures, catastrophic events and scheduled maintenance.

Interruptions in our production capabilities may cause our productivity and results of operations to decline significantly during the affected period. Our manufacturing processes are dependent upon critical pieces of equipment. Such equipment may, on occasion, be out of service as a result of unanticipated events such as fires, explosions, violent weather conditions or unexpected operational difficulties. We also have periodic scheduled shut-downs to perform maintenance on our facilities. Any significant interruption in production capability may require us to make significant capital expenditures to remedy problems or damage as well as cause us to lose revenue and profits due to lost production time, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Increases in interest rates and inflation could adversely affect our business and demand for our products, which would have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

Our business is significantly affected by the movement of interest rates. Interest rates have a direct impact on the level of residential, commercial and infrastructure construction activity by impacting the cost of borrowed funds to builders. Higher interest rates could result in decreased demand for our products, which would have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations. In addition, increases in interest rates could result in higher interest expense related to borrowings under our Credit Facility. Inflation can result in higher interest rates. With inflation, the costs of capital increase, and the purchasing power of our cash resources can decline. Current or future efforts by the government to stimulate the economy may increase the risk of significant inflation, which could have a direct and indirect adverse impact on our business and results of operations.

Any new business opportunities we may elect to pursue will be subject to the risks typically associated with the early stages of business development or product line expansion.

We are continuing to pursue opportunities which are natural extensions of our existing core businesses and which allow us to leverage our core competencies, existing infrastructure and customer relationships. See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations – Executive Summary." Our likelihood of success in pursuing and realizing these opportunities must be considered in light of the expenses, difficulties and delays frequently encountered in connection with the early phases of business development or product line expansion, including the difficulties involved in obtaining permits; planning and constructing new facilities; transporting and storing products; establishing, maintaining or expanding customer relationships; as well navigating the regulatory environment in which we operate. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in the pursuit and realization of these opportunities.

We may be adversely affected by decreased demand for frac sand or the development of either effective alternative proppants or new processes to replace hydraulic fracturing.

Frac sand is a proppant used in the completion and re-completion of natural gas and oil wells through hydraulic fracturing. Frac sand is the most commonly used proppant and is less expensive than ceramic proppant, which is also used in hydraulic fracturing to stimulate and maintain oil and natural gas production. A significant shift in demand from frac sand to other proppants, such as ceramic proppants, could have a material adverse effect on our oil and gas proppants business. The development and use of other effective alternative proppants, or the development of new processes to replace hydraulic fracturing altogether, could also cause a decline in demand for the frac sand we produce and could have a material adverse effect on our oil and gas proppants business.

Our operations are dependent on our rights and ability to mine our properties and on our having renewed or received the required permits and approvals from governmental authorities and other third parties.

We hold numerous governmental, environmental, mining and other permits, water rights and approvals authorizing operations at many of our facilities. A decision by a governmental agency or other third party to deny



or delay issuing a new or renewed permit or approval, or to revoke or substantially modify an existing permit or approval, could have a material adverse effect on our ability to continue operations at the affected facility. Expansion of our existing operations is also predicated on securing the necessary environmental or other permits, water rights or approvals, which we may not receive in a timely manner or at all.

Title to, and the area of, mineral properties and water rights may also be disputed. Mineral properties sometimes contain claims or transfer histories that examiners cannot verify. A successful claim that we do not have title to one or more of our properties or lack appropriate water rights could cause us to lose any rights to explore, develop and extract any minerals on that property, without compensation for our prior expenditures relating to such property. Our business may suffer a material adverse effect in the event one or more of our properties are determined to have title deficiencies.

In some instances, we have received access rights or easements from third parties, which allow for a more efficient operation than would exist without the access or easement. A third party could take action to suspend the access or easement, and any such action could be materially adverse to or results of operations or financial conditions.

A cyber-attack or data security breach affecting our information technology systems may negatively affect our businesses, financial condition and operating results.

We use information technology systems to collect, store and transmit the data needed to operate our businesses, including our confidential and proprietary information. Although we have implemented industry-standard security safeguards and policies to prevent unauthorized access or disclosure of such information, we cannot prevent all cyber-attacks or data security breaches. If such an attack or breach occurs, our businesses could be negatively affected, and we could incur additional costs in remediating the attack or breach and suffer reputational harm due to the theft or disclosure of our confidential information.

Risks Related to our acquisitions

We may not realize any or all of the anticipated benefits of the CRS and Skyway Acquisitions and these acquisitions may adversely impact our existing operations.

We may not be able to achieve the anticipated benefits of the acquisitions. We may not be able to accomplish the integration of CRS Proppants and Skyway Plant smoothly, successfully or within the anticipated costs or timeframe. In general, we cannot be certain that we will be able to timely achieve the anticipated incremental revenues, cost savings, operational synergies and other expected benefits of these acquisitions.

The diversion of our management's attention from our current operations to integration efforts and any difficulties encountered in combining operations could prevent us from realizing the full benefits anticipated to result from acquisitions and could adversely affect our business and the price of our common stock. The integration process may be complex, costly and time-consuming. The difficulties of integrating CRS Proppants and the Skyway Plant with our business include, among others:

- failure to implement our business plan for the combined business;
- · unanticipated issues in integrating logistics, information, communications and other systems;
- unanticipated changes in applicable laws and regulations;
- the impact of the acquisitions on our internal controls and compliance with the regulatory requirements under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002; and
- · unanticipated issues, expenses and liabilities.

We incurred significant liabilities and costs as a result of or in connection with the CRS and Skyway Acquisitions.

Upon consummation of the acquisitions we became responsible for all liabilities and obligations that arose in connection with the operation of CRS Proppants and the Skyway Plant.



In addition, we incurred significant costs in connection with the acquisitions. The substantial majority of these costs are non-recurring transaction expenses and costs. Furthermore, substantial time and resources have been and may continue to be devoted to the acquisitions and related matters, which could otherwise have been devoted to other opportunities that may have been beneficial to us.

This report includes various forward-looking statements, which are not facts or guarantees of future performance and which are subject to significant risks and uncertainties.

This report and other materials we have filed or will file with the SEC, as well as information included in oral statements or other written statements made or to be made by us, contain or may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, Section 21E of the Exchange Act of 1934 and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. You can identify these statements by the fact that they do not relate to matters of a strictly factual or historical nature and generally discuss or relate to forecasts, estimates or other expectations regarding future events. Generally, the words "believe," "expect," "intend," "estimate," "anticipate," "project," "may," "can," "could," "might," "will" and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements, including statements related to expected operating and performing results, planned transactions, plans and objectives of management, future developments or conditions in the industries in which we participate, including future prices for our products, audits and legal proceedings to which we are a party and other trends, developments and uncertainties that may affect our business in the future.

Forward-looking statements are not historical facts or guarantees of future performance but instead represent only our beliefs at the time the statements were made regarding future events, which are subject to significant risks, uncertainties, and other factors, many of which are outside of our control. Any or all of the forward-looking statements made by us may turn out to be materially inaccurate. This can occur as a result of incorrect assumptions, changes in facts and circumstances or the effects of known risks and uncertainties. Many of the risks and uncertainties mentioned in this report or other reports filed by us with the SEC, including those discussed in the risk factor section of this report, will be important in determining whether these forward-looking statements prove to be accurate. Consequently, neither our stockholders nor any other person should place undue reliance on our forward-looking statements and should recognize that actual results may differ materially from those that may be anticipated by us.

All forward-looking statements made in this report are made as of the date hereof, and the risk that actual results will differ materially from expectations expressed in this report will increase with the passage of time. We undertake no obligation, and disclaim any duty, to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, changes in our expectations or otherwise.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

The disclosure required under this Item is included in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition" of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q under the heading "Share Repurchases" and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

The information concerning mine safety violations or other regulatory matters required by Section 1503 (a) of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and Item 104 of Regulation S-K is included in Exhibit 95 to this Form 10-Q.

Item 6. Exhibits

- 3.1 Amendment to Amended and Restated Bylaws (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on August 7, 2015 and incorporated herein by reference). 10.1* Eagle Materials Inc. Director Compensation Summary.⁽¹⁾ 10.2* Form of Director Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement. (1) 10.3* Form of Director Restricted Stock Agreement. (1) 10.4* Amendment No. 1 to Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by and among Eagle Materials Inc., JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent, and the other Lenders party thereto dated August 10, 2015. Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges. 12.1* 31.1* Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Eagle Materials Inc. pursuant to Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of Eagle Materials Inc. pursuant to Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 promulgated under the 31.2* Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Eagle Materials Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to 32.1* Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of Eagle Materials Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to 32.2* Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 95* Mine Safety Disclosure 101.INS* XBRL Instance Document. 101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
- 101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.
- 101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.
- 101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.
- 101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.
- Filed herewith.
- ** Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, the Company agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any omitted exhibit or schedule to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.
- (1) Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

	EAGLE MATERIALS INC.
	Registrant
October 27, 2015	/s/ STEVEN R. ROWLEY
	Steven R. Rowley
	President and Chief Executive Officer
	(principal executive officer)
October 27, 2015	/s/ D. CRAIG KESLER
	D. Craig Kesler
	Executive Vice President – Finance and
	Administration and Chief Financial Officer
	(principal financial officer)
October 27, 2015	/s/ WILLIAM R. DEVLIN
	William R. Devlin
	Senior Vice President – Controller and
	Chief Accounting Officer
	(principal accounting officer)

EAGLE MATERIALS INC. Non-Employee Directors -- Compensation Summary Effective August 2015 to July 2016

On an annual basis, each non-employee director of Eagle Materials Inc. (the "Company") may select one of the following compensation packages for his or her performance of director services during the next 12 months:

- (1) total annual compensation valued at \$170,000, of which \$85,000 is paid in cash and the remainder is provided in the form of an equity grant valued at \$85,000; or
- (2) an equity grant valued at \$193,000.

The grant date value of the equity grant under either alternative is allocated between restricted stock and options to purchase common stock of the Company, par value \$0.01 ("Common Stock") (based upon the recommendation of the Compensation Committee) with respect to each non-employee director.

In accordance with the terms of the Eagle Materials Inc. Amended and Restated Incentive Plan, the exercise price of the stock options is set at the closing price of the Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") on the date of grant. The number of option shares granted is determined as of the date of the grant by using the Black-Scholes method. All options granted to directors in August 2015 were fully exercisable when granted and have a ten-year term.

The number of shares of restricted stock is determined as of the date of grant using the closing price of the Common Stock on the NYSE on the date of grant. The restricted stock granted to directors in August 2015 was earned on the date of grant; however, the shares will not become fully vested (unrestricted) until the recipient's retirement from the Board in accordance with the Company's director retirement policy, or under such circumstances as are approved by the Compensation Committee. During the restriction period the director will have the right to vote the shares. In addition, the director will also be entitled to cash dividends as and when the Company issues a cash dividend on the Common Stock. Notwithstanding the above, the restricted shares issued to Mr. Hirsch do not have voting rights and are not entitled to cash dividends, but rather to a dividend-equivalent payment.

Non-employee directors who chair committees of the Board of Directors receive additional annual compensation. The Governance Committee Chair receives a fee of \$15,000 per year. The chairs of the Audit Committee and the Compensation Committee each receive a fee of \$20,000 per year. The Vice Chairman of the Board receives a fee of \$35,000 per year, and the Chairman of the Board of Directors receives a fee of \$50,000 per year. Chairpersons who choose compensation package alternative one (part equity

and part cash) receive this additional compensation in the form of cash. Chairpersons who choose compensation package alternative two (all equity) receive this additional compensation in the form of equity, in which case a 26.67% premium is added to such fees when valuing the equity to be received by such chairperson.

If non-employee directors hold unvested restricted stock units ("RSUs") granted as part of director compensation in prior fiscal years (which currently includes Messrs. Barnett, Hirsch and Nicolais), these directors will receive dividend equivalent units as and when the Company issues a cash dividend on the Common Stock, in accordance with the terms of the RSUs.

All directors are reimbursed for reasonable expenses of attending meetings.

EAGLE MATERIALS INC. AMENDED AND RESTATED INCENTIVE PLAN

NON-QUALIFIED DIRECTOR STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

This option agreement (the "Option Agreement" or "Agreement") entered into between EAGLE MATERIALS INC., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), and ______ (the "Optionee"), a director of the Company, with respect to a right (the "Option") awarded to the Optionee under the Eagle Materials Inc. Amended and Restated Incentive Plan (the "Plan"), on August 6, 2015 (the "Award Date") to purchase from the Company up to but not exceeding in the aggregate ______ shares of Common Stock (as defined in the Plan) at a price of \$79.73 per share (the "Exercise Price"), such number of shares and such price per share being subject to adjustment as provided in the Plan, and further subject to the following terms and conditions:

1. *Relationship to Plan.*

This Option is subject to all of the terms, conditions and provisions of the Plan and administrative interpretations thereunder, if any, which have been adopted by the Company's Compensation Committee ("Committee") and are in effect on the date hereof. Except as defined herein, capitalized terms shall have the same meanings ascribed to them under the Plan. For purposes of this Option Agreement:

"Retirement" shall mean termination of service on the Board at the Company's mandatory retirement age in accordance with the Company's director retirement policy or earlier on such terms and conditions as approved by the Committee.

2. Exercise Schedule.

(a) *Exercisability*. This Option may be exercised to purchase the shares of Common Stock covered thereby (the "Option Shares") immediately on the Award Date. Such Option may be exercised in whole or in part (at any time or from time to time, except as otherwise provided herein) until expiration of the Option pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or the Plan.

(b)*Change in Control.* Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control (as defined in <u>Exhibit A</u> to this Agreement), (i) this Option may be replaced within a reasonable time after the Change in Control with an option of equivalent value to purchase shares of the surviving parent corporation if the Committee determines that the terms giving rise to the Change in Control provide for such replacement, or (ii) the Option may be settled in cash in accordance with the last sentence of this subparagraph (b). Upon a Change in Control, pursuant to Section 15 of the Plan, the Company may, in its discretion, settle the Option by a cash payment equal to the difference between the Fair Market Value per share of Common Stock on

the settlement date and the Exercise Price for the Option, multiplied by the number of shares then subject to the Option.

3. *Termination of Option.*

The Option hereby granted shall terminate and be of no force and effect with respect to any Option Shares not previously purchased by the Optionee at the earliest time specified below:

(a)the tenth anniversary of the Award Date;

(b)if Optionee's service as a Director is terminated by the Company for "cause" (as determined by the Committee) at any time after the Award Date, then the Option shall terminate immediately upon such termination of Optionee's service;

(c)if Optionee's service as a Director is terminated due to Retirement, then this Option shall terminate on the tenth anniversary of the Award Date;

(d)if Optionee's service as a Director is terminated due to death at any time after the Award Date and while in the service of the Company or within 90 days after such termination of service, then the Option shall terminate on the first business day following the expiration of the one-year period which began on the date of Optionee's death; or

(e)if Optionee's service as a Director is terminated for any reason other than death, Retirement or termination for "cause," then the Option shall terminate on the first business day following the expiration of the 90-day period beginning on the date of termination of Optionee's service.

4. Exercise of Option.

Subject to the limitations set forth herein and in the Plan, this Option may be exercised by notice provided to the Company as set forth in Section 5. The payment of the Exercise Price for the Option Shares being purchased pursuant to the Option shall be made (a) in cash, by check or cash equivalent, (b) by tender to the Company, or attestation to the ownership, of Common Stock owned by the Optionee having a Fair Market Value (as determined by the Company without regard to any restrictions on transferability applicable to such Common Stock by reason of federal or state securities laws or agreements with an underwriter for the Company) not less than the Exercise Price, (c) by delivery of a properly executed notice together with irrevocable instructions to a broker providing for the assignment to the Company of the proceeds of a sale or loan with respect to some or all of the shares being acquired upon the exercise of the Option (including, without limitation, through an exercise complying with the provisions of Regulation T as promulgated from time to time by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System), (d) by withholding Option Shares equal to the Exercise Price multiplied by the number of Options exercised divided by the Fair Market Value at the time of exercise, rounded up to the nearest whole share, (e) by such other consideration as may be approved by the Board from time to time to the extent permitted by applicable law, or (f) by any combination thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Exercise Price of the outstanding portion of the Option is less than the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the day the Option would

otherwise expire as provided in Section 3(a), then the Option shall be automatically exercised in full pursuant to clause (d) above immediately prior to its expiration.

If the Optionee desires to pay the purchase price for the Option Shares by tendering Common Stock using the method of attestation, the Optionee may, subject to any such conditions and in compliance with any such procedures as the Committee may adopt, do so by attesting to the ownership of Common Stock of the requisite value, in which case the Company shall issue or otherwise deliver to the Optionee upon such exercise a number of Option Shares equal to the result obtained by dividing (a) the excess of the aggregate Fair Market Value of the total number shares of Common Stock subject to the Option for which the Option (or portion thereof) is being exercised over the purchase price payable in respect of such exercise by (b) the Fair Market Value per share of Common Stock subject to the Option, and the Optionee may retain the shares of Common Stock the ownership of which is attested.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Optionee agrees that he will not exercise the Option granted pursuant hereto, and the Company will not be obligated to issue any Option Shares pursuant to this Option Agreement, if the exercise of the Option or the issuance of such shares would constitute a violation by the Optionee or by the Company of any provision of any law or regulation of any governmental authority or any stock exchange or transaction quotation system. The Optionee agrees that, unless the options and shares covered by the Plan have been registered pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"), the Company may, at its election, require the Optionee to give a representation in writing in form and substance satisfactory to the Company to the effect that he is acquiring such shares for his own account for investment and not with a view to, or for sale in connection with, the distribution of such shares or any part thereof.

If any law or regulation requires the Company to take any action with respect to the shares specified in such notice, the time for delivery thereof, which would otherwise be as promptly as reasonably practicable, shall be postponed for the period of time necessary to take such action.

5. *Notices*.

Notice of exercise of the Option must be made in the following manner, using such forms as the Company may from time to time provide:

(b)by electronic means as designated by the Committee, in which case the date of exercise shall be the date when receipt is acknowledged by the Company;

(c)by registered or certified United States mail, postage prepaid, to Eagle Materials Inc., Attention: Secretary, 3811 Turtle Creek Blvd., Suite 1100, Dallas, Texas 75219, in which case the date of exercise shall be the date of mailing; or

(d)by hand delivery or otherwise to Eagle Materials Inc., Attention: Secretary, 3811 Turtle Creek Blvd., Suite 1100, Dallas, Texas 75219, in which case the date of exercise shall be the date when receipt is acknowledged by the Company.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the address of the Company is changed prior to the date of any exercise of this Option, notice of exercise shall instead be made pursuant to the foregoing provisions at the Company's current address.

Any other notices provided for in this Agreement or in the Plan shall be given in writing or by such electronic means, as permitted by the Committee, and shall be deemed effectively delivered or given upon receipt or, in the case of notices delivered by the Company to the Optionee, five days after deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the Optionee at the address specified at the end of this Agreement or at such other address as the Optionee hereafter designates by written notice to the Company.

6. Assignment of Option.

Except as otherwise permitted by the Committee, the rights of the Optionee under the Plan and this Agreement are personal; no assignment or transfer of the Optionee's rights under and interest in this Option may be made by the Optionee otherwise than by will, by beneficiary designation, by the laws of descent and distribution or by a qualified domestic relations order; and this Option is exercisable during his lifetime only by the Optionee, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement.

After the death of the Optionee, exercise of the Option shall be permitted only by the Optionee's designated beneficiary or, in the absence of a designated beneficiary, the Optionee's executor or the personal representative of the Optionee's estate (or by his assignee, in the event of a permitted assignment) and only to the extent that the Option was exercisable on the date of the Optionee's death.

7. Stock Certificates.

Certificates representing the Common Stock issued pursuant to the exercise of the Option will bear all legends required by law and necessary or advisable to effectuate the provisions of the Plan and this Option. The Company may place a "stop transfer" order against shares of the Common Stock issued pursuant to the exercise of this Option until all restrictions and conditions set forth in the Plan or this Agreement and in the legends referred to in this Section 7 have been complied with.

8. Shareholder Rights.

The Optionee shall have no rights of a shareholder with respect to shares of Common Stock subject to the Option unless and until such time as the Option has been exercised and ownership of such shares of Common Stock has been transferred to the Optionee.

9. *Successors and Assigns.*

This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the Optionee, the Company and their respective permitted successors and assigns (including personal representatives, heirs and legatees), except that the Optionee may not assign any rights or obligations under this Agreement except to the extent and in the manner expressly permitted herein.

10. No Service Guaranteed.

No provision of this Option Agreement shall confer any right upon the Optionee to continued service with the

Company.

11. *Governing Law.*

This Option Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State

of Texas.

12. *Amendment*.

This Agreement cannot be modified, altered or amended except by an agreement, in writing, signed by both the Company and the Optionee.

EAGLE MATERIALS INC.

Dated: August ___, 2015By:Name:Steven R. RowleyIts:President and CEOAddress:3811 Turtle Creek Boulevard, Suite 1100
Dallas, Texas 75219

The Optionee hereby accepts the foregoing Option Agreement, subject to the terms and provisions of the Plan and administrative interpretations thereof referred to above.

Dated: , 2015	Signed:
	Name:
	Address:
	6

EXHIBIT A

Change in Control

events:

For the purpose of this Agreement, a "Change in Control" shall mean the occurrence of any of the following

(a)The acquisition by any Person of beneficial ownership of securities of the Company (including any such acquisition of beneficial ownership deemed to have occurred pursuant to Rule 13d-5 under the Exchange Act) if, immediately thereafter, such Person is the beneficial owner of (i) 50% or more of the total number of outstanding shares of any single class of Company Common Stock or (ii) 40% or more of the total number of outstanding shares of all classes of Company Common Stock, unless such acquisition is made (a) directly from the Company in a transaction approved by a majority of the members of the Incumbent Board or (b) by any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by the Company or any corporation controlled by the Company;

(b)Individuals who, as of the date hereof, constitute the Board (the "Incumbent Board") cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the Board; provided, however, that any individual becoming a director subsequent to the date hereof whose election, or nomination for election by the Company's stockholders, was approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then comprising the Incumbent Board (or who is otherwise designated as a member of the Incumbent Board by such a vote) shall be considered as though such individual were a member of the Incumbent Board, except that any such individual shall not be considered a member of the Incumbent Board if his or her initial assumption of office occurs as a result of either an actual or threatened election contest (as such term is used in Rule 14a-11 of Regulation 14A promulgated under the Exchange Act) or other actual or threatened solicitation of proxies or consents by or on behalf of a Person other than the Board;

(c)The consummation of a Business Combination, unless, immediately following such Business Combination, (i) more than 50% of both the total number of then outstanding shares of common stock of the parent corporation resulting from such Business Combination and the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities of such parent corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors will be (or is) then beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by all or substantially all of the Persons who were the beneficial owners, respectively, of the outstanding shares of Company Common Stock immediately prior to such Business Combination in substantially the same proportions as their ownership immediately prior to such Business Combination of the outstanding shares of Company Common Stock, (ii) no Person (other than any employee benefit plan (or related trust) of the Company or any corporation resulting from such Business Combination) beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, 40% or more of the total number of then outstanding shares of common stock of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination or the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities of such corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors and (iii) at least a majority of the members of the board of directors of the parent corporation resulting from such Business Combination were members of the Incumbent Board immediately prior to the consummation of such Business Combination; or

1 -A

(d)Approval by the Board and the shareholders of the Company of (i) a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company or (ii) a Major Asset Disposition (or, if there is no such approval by shareholders, consummation of such Major Asset Disposition) unless, immediately following such Major Asset Disposition, (A) Persons that were beneficial owners of the outstanding shares of Company Common Stock immediately prior to such Major Asset Disposition beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the total number of then outstanding shares of common stock and the combined voting power of the then outstanding shares of voting stock of the Company (if it continues to exist) and of the Acquiring Entity in substantially the same proportions as their ownership immediately prior to such Major Asset Disposition of the outstanding shares of Company Common Stock; (B) no Person (other than any employee benefit plan (or related trust) of the Company or such entity) beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, 40% or more of the then outstanding shares of common stock or the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities of the Company (if it continues to exist) and of the Acquiring Entity entitled to vote generally in the election of directors and (C) at least a majority of the members of the Board of the Company (if it continues to exist) and of the Acquiring Entity were members of the Incumbent Board at the time of the execution of the initial agreement or action of the Board providing for such Major Asset Disposition.

For purposes of the foregoing,

Act;

(i)the term "Person" means an individual, entity or group;

(ii)the term "group" is used as it is defined for purposes of Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange

(iii)the terms "beneficial owner", "beneficial ownership" and "beneficially own" are used as defined for purposes of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act;

(iv)the term "Business Combination" means (x) a merger, consolidation or share exchange involving the Company or its stock or (y) an acquisition by the Company, directly or through one or more subsidiaries, of another entity or its stock or assets;

(v)the term "Company Common Stock" shall mean the Common Stock, par value \$.01 per share, of the Company;

(vi)the term "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;

(vii)the phrase "parent corporation resulting from a Business Combination" means the Company if its stock is not acquired or converted in the Business Combination and otherwise means the entity which as a result of such Business Combination owns the Company or all or substantially all of the Company's assets either directly or through one or more subsidiaries;

2 -A

(viii)the term "Major Asset Disposition" means the sale or other disposition in one transaction or a series of related transactions of 50% or more of the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis; and any specified percentage or portion of the assets of the Company shall be based on fair market value, as determined by a majority of the members of the Incumbent Board;

(ix)the term "Acquiring Entity" means the entity that acquires the largest portion of the assets sold or otherwise disposed of in a Major Asset Disposition (or the entity, if any, that owns a majority of the outstanding voting stock of such acquiring entity entitled to vote generally in the election of directors or members of a comparable governing body); and

(x)the phrase "substantially the same proportions," when used with reference to ownership interests in the parent corporation resulting from a Business Combination or in an Acquiring Entity, means substantially in proportion to the number of shares of Company Common Stock beneficially owned by the applicable Persons immediately prior to the Business Combination or Major Asset Disposition, but is not to be construed in such a manner as to require that the same ratio or number of shares of such parent corporation or Acquiring Entity be issued, paid or delivered in exchange for or in respect of the shares of each class of Company Common Stock.

3 -A

EAGLE MATERIALS INC.

AMENDED AND RESTATED INCENTIVE PLAN RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT

Eagle Materials Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "<u>Company</u>"), and ______ (the "<u>Grantee</u>") hereby enter into this Restricted Stock Award Agreement (the "<u>Agreement</u>") in order to set forth the terms and conditions of the Company's award (the "<u>Award</u>") to the Grantee of certain shares of Common Stock of the Company granted to the Grantee on August 6, 2015 (the "<u>Award</u>").

 1.
 Award. The Company hereby awards to the Grantee ______ shares of Common Stock of the Company (the "Shares").

2. <u>Relationship to the Plan</u>. The Award shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the Eagle Materials Inc. Amended and Restated Incentive Plan (the "<u>Plan</u>"), this Agreement and such administrative interpretations of the Plan, if any, as may be in effect on the date of this Agreement. Except as defined herein, capitalized terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them under the Plan. For purposes of this Agreement:

- (a) "<u>Restriction Period</u>" shall mean the period beginning on the Award Date and ending on the date immediately preceding the Vesting Date.
- (b) "<u>Retirement</u>" shall mean termination of service on the Board at the Company's mandatory retirement age in accordance with the Company's director retirement policy or earlier on such terms and conditions as approved by the Committee.
- 3. <u>Vesting</u>.
 - (a) <u>Vesting Criteria</u>. The Grantee's interest in the Shares shall vest in full as of the earlier of (i) Grantee's Retirement or (ii) Grantee's death (as applicable, the "<u>Vesting Date</u>"). Prior to the Vesting Date, all Shares shall be unvested Shares.
 - (b) <u>Restrictions</u>. During the Restriction Period, the Grantee may not sell, transfer, pledge, exchange, hypothecate, or otherwise dispose of any unvested Shares or any right or interest related to such unvested Shares, other than as required by the Grantee's will or beneficiary designation, in accordance with the laws of descent and distribution or by a qualified domestic relations order.
 - (c) <u>Cancellation Right</u>. The Grantee must be in continuous service as a Director from the Award Date through the Vesting Date for an unvested Share to become vested. Subject to Section 4, Grantee's discontinuation of service as a Director prior to the Vesting Date shall cause the unvested Shares to be automatically forfeited as of such discontinuation of service date.

4. <u>Change in Control</u>. The restrictions set forth above in Section 3 shall lapse with respect to the unvested Shares not previously forfeited and such Shares shall become fully vested without regard to the limitations set forth in Section 3 above, provided that the Grantee has been in continuous service

as a Director from the Award Date through the occurrence of a Change in Control (as defined in <u>Exhibit A</u> to this Agreement), unless either: (i) the Committee determines that the terms of the transaction giving rise to the Change in Control provide that the Award is to be replaced within a reasonable time after the Change in Control with an award of equivalent value of shares of the surviving parent corporation, or (ii) the Award is to be settled in cash in accordance with the last sentence of this Section 4. Upon a Change in Control, pursuant to Section 15 of the Plan, the Company may, in its discretion, settle the Award by a cash payment that the Committee shall determine in its sole discretion is equal to the fair market value of the Award on the date of such event.

5. <u>Stockholder Rights</u>. The Grantee shall have the right to vote the Shares. The Grantee shall also have the right to receive any cash dividends paid on the unvested Shares at the same time such amounts are paid with respect to all other shares of Common Stock; provided, the record date for such dividend payment is on or after the Award Date.

6. <u>Capital Adjustments and Corporate Events</u>. If, from time to time during the term of the Restriction Period, there is any capital adjustment affecting the outstanding Common Stock as a class without the Company's receipt of consideration, the Shares shall be adjusted in accordance with the provisions of Section 15 of the Plan. Any and all new, substituted or additional securities to which the Grantee may be entitled by reason of the Grantee's ownership of the Shares hereunder because of a capital adjustment shall be immediately subject to the restrictions set forth herein and included thereafter as Shares for purposes of this Agreement.

- 7. <u>Refusal to Transfer</u>. The Company shall not be required:
 - (a) to transfer on its books any Shares that have been sold or otherwise transferred in violation of any of the provisions of this Agreement or the Plan; or
 - (b) to treat such purchaser or other transferee as owner of such Shares, accord such purchaser or other transferee the right to vote; or pay or deliver dividends or other distributions to such purchaser or other transferee with respect to such Shares.

8. <u>Legends</u>. If the Shares are certificated, the certificate or certificates evidencing the Shares, if any, issued hereunder shall be endorsed with the following legend:

THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE ARE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN RESTRICTIONS AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE SOLD, ASSIGNED, TRANSFERRED, ENCUMBERED, OR IN ANY MANNER DISPOSED OF EXCEPT IN CONFORMITY WITH THE TERMS OF THAT CERTAIN RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE ISSUER AND THE ORIGINAL HOLDER OF THESE SHARES. A COPY OF SUCH AGREEMENT IS MAINTAINED AT THE ISSUER'S PRINCIPAL CORPORATE OFFICES.

9. <u>Tax Consequences</u>. The Grantee has reviewed with the Grantee's own tax advisors the federal, state, and local tax consequences of this investment and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The Grantee is relying solely on such advisors and not on any statements or representations of the Company or any of its agents. The Grantee understands that the Grantee (and not the Company) shall be responsible for the Grantee's own tax liability that may arise as a result of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The Grantee understands that Section 83 of the Code taxes as ordinary

- 2 -

income the difference between the purchase price, if any, for the Shares and the Fair Market Value of the Shares as of the date any restrictions on the Shares lapse. In this context, "restriction" means the restrictions imposed during the Restriction Period. The Grantee understands that the Grantee may elect to be taxed at the time the Shares are awarded rather than when and as the restrictions lapse by filing an election under Section 83(b) of the Code with the Internal Revenue Service within 30 days from the Award Date. THE GRANTEE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT IS THE GRANTEE'S SOLE RESPONSIBILITY (AND NOT THE COMPANY'S) TO FILE TIMELY THE ELECTION UNDER SECTION 83(B), EVEN IF THE GRANTEE REQUESTS THE COMPANY OR ITS REPRESENTATIVES TO MAKE THIS FILING ON THE GRANTEE'S BEHALF.

10. Entire Agreement; Governing Law. The Plan and this Agreement constitute the entire agreement of the Company and the Grantee (collectively, the "Parties") with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede in their entirety all prior undertakings and agreements of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and may not be modified adversely to the Grantee's interest except by means of a writing signed by the Parties. Nothing in the Plan and this Agreement (except as expressly provided therein or herein) is intended to confer any rights or remedies on any person other than the Parties. The Plan and this Agreement are to be construed in accordance with and governed by the internal laws of the State of Texas, without giving effect to any choice-of-law rule that would cause the application of the laws of any jurisdiction other than the internal laws of the State of Texas to the rights and duties of the Parties. Should any provision of the Plan or this Agreement relating to the Shares be determined by a court of law to be illegal or unenforceable, such provision shall be enforced to the fullest extent allowed by law and the other provisions shall nevertheless remain effective and shall remain enforceable.

11. <u>Interpretive Matters</u>. Whenever required by the context, pronouns and any variation thereof shall be deemed to refer to the masculine, feminine, or neuter, and the singular shall include the plural, and vice versa. The term "include" or "including" does not denote or imply any limitation. The term "business day" means any Monday through Friday other than such a day on which banks are authorized to be closed in the State of Texas. The captions and headings used in this Agreement are inserted for convenience and shall not be deemed a part of the Award or this Agreement for construction or interpretation.

12. <u>Notice</u>. Any notice or other communication required or permitted hereunder shall be given in writing and shall be deemed given, effective, and received upon prepaid delivery in person or by courier or upon the earlier of delivery or the third business day after deposit in the United States mail if sent by certified mail, with postage and fees prepaid, addressed to the other Party at its address as shown beneath its signature in this Agreement, or to such other address as such Party may designate in writing from time to time by notice to the other Party.

13. <u>Successors and Assigns</u>. This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the Grantee, the Company and their respective permitted successors and assigns (including personal representatives, heirs and legatees), except that the Grantee may not assign any rights or obligations under this Agreement except to the extent and in the manner expressly permitted herein.

[Signature page follows]

- 3 -

EAGLE MATERIALS INC.

Dated: August, 2015	By:	
	Name:	Steven R. Rowley
	Its:	President and CEO
	Address:	3811 Turtle Creek Boulevard, Suite 1100 Dallas, Texas 75219

The Grantee acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan, represents that he or she is familiar with the terms and provisions thereof, and hereby accepts the Award subject to all of the terms and provisions hereof and thereof. The Grantee has reviewed this Agreement and the Plan in their entirety, has had an opportunity to obtain the advice of counsel prior to executing this Agreement, and fully understands all provisions of this Agreement and the Plan. The Grantee further agrees to notify the Company upon any change in the address for notice indicated in this Agreement.

	GRANTEE
Dated: , 2015	Signed:
	Name:
	Address:

- 4 -

EXHIBIT A

CHANGE IN CONTROL

For the purpose of this Agreement, a "Change in Control" shall mean the occurrence of any of the following events:

(a)The acquisition by any Person of beneficial ownership of securities of the Company (including any such acquisition of beneficial ownership deemed to have occurred pursuant to Rule 13d-5 under the Exchange Act) if, immediately thereafter, such Person is the beneficial owner of (i) 50% or more of the total number of outstanding shares of any single class of Company Common Stock or (ii) 40% or more of the total number of outstanding shares of all classes of Company Common Stock, unless such acquisition is made (a) directly from the Company in a transaction approved by a majority of the members of the Incumbent Board or (b) by any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by the Company or any corporation controlled by the Company;

(b)Individuals who, as of the date hereof, constitute the Board (the "Incumbent Board") cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the Board; provided, however, that any individual becoming a director subsequent to the date hereof whose election, or nomination for election by the Company's stockholders, was approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then comprising the Incumbent Board (or who is otherwise designated as a member of the Incumbent Board by such a vote) shall be considered as though such individual were a member of the Incumbent Board, except that any such individual shall not be considered a member of the Incumbent Board if his or her initial assumption of office occurs as a result of either an actual or threatened election contest (as such term is used in Rule 14a-11 of Regulation 14A promulgated under the Exchange Act) or other actual or threatened solicitation of proxies or consents by or on behalf of a Person other than the Board;

(c)The consummation of a Business Combination, unless, immediately following such Business Combination, (i) more than 50% of both the total number of then outstanding shares of common stock of the parent corporation resulting from such Business Combination and the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities of such parent corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors will be (or is) then beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by all or substantially all of the Persons who were the beneficial owners, respectively, of the outstanding shares of Company Common Stock immediately prior to such Business Combination in substantially the same proportions as their ownership immediately prior to such Business Combination of the outstanding shares of Company Common Stock, (ii) no Person (other than any employee benefit plan (or related trust) of the Company or any corporation resulting from such Business Combination) beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, 40% or more of the total number of then outstanding shares of common stock of the corporation resulting from such Business Combination or the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities of such corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors and (iii) at least a majority of the members of the board of directors of the parent corporation resulting from such Business Combination, or

(d)Approval by the Board and the shareholders of the Company of (i) a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company or (ii) a Major Asset Disposition (or, if there is no such approval by shareholders, consummation of such Major Asset Disposition) unless, immediately following such Major Asset Disposition, (A) Persons that were beneficial owners of the outstanding shares of Company Common Stock immediately prior to such Major Asset Disposition beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the total number of then outstanding shares of common stock and the combined voting power of the then outstanding shares of voting stock of the Company (if it continues to

exist) and of the Acquiring Entity in substantially the same proportions as their ownership immediately prior to such Major Asset Disposition of the outstanding shares of Company Common Stock; (B) no Person (other than any employee benefit plan (or related trust) of the Company or such entity) beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, 40% or more of the then outstanding shares of common stock or the combined voting power of the then outstanding voting securities of the Company (if it continues to exist) and of the Acquiring Entity entitled to vote generally in the election of directors and (C) at least a majority of the members of the Board of the Company (if it continues to exist) and of the Acquiring Entity were members of the Incumbent Board at the time of the execution of the initial agreement or action of the Board providing for such Major Asset Disposition.

For purposes of the foregoing,

- (i) the term "*Person*" means an individual, entity or group;
- (ii) the term "*group*" is used as it is defined for purposes of Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act;
- (iii) the terms "*beneficial owner*", "*beneficial ownership*" and "*beneficially own*" are used as defined for purposes of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act;
- (iv) the term "*Business Combination*" means (x) a merger, consolidation or share exchange involving the Company or its stock or (y) an acquisition by the Company, directly or through one or more subsidiaries, of another entity or its stock or assets;
- (v) the term "*Company Common Stock*" shall mean the Common Stock, par value \$.01 per share, of the Company;
- (vi) the term "*Exchange Act*" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;
- (vii) the phrase "*parent corporation resulting from a Business Combination*" means the Company if its stock is not acquired or converted in the Business Combination and otherwise means the entity which as a result of such Business Combination owns the Company or all or substantially all of the Company's assets either directly or through one or more subsidiaries;
- (viii) the term "*Major Asset Disposition*" means the sale or other disposition in one transaction or a series of related transactions of 50% or more of the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis; and any specified percentage or portion of the assets of the Company shall be based on fair market value, as determined by a majority of the members of the Incumbent Board;
- (ix) the term "*Acquiring Entity*" means the entity that acquires the largest portion of the assets sold or otherwise disposed of in a Major Asset Disposition (or the entity, if any, that owns a majority of the outstanding voting stock of such acquiring entity entitled to vote generally in the election of directors or members of a comparable governing body); and
- (x) the phrase "*substantially the same proportions*," when used with reference to ownership interests in the parent corporation resulting from a Business Combination or in an Acquiring Entity, means substantially in proportion to the number of shares of Company Common Stock beneficially owned by the applicable Persons immediately prior to the Business Combination or Major Asset Disposition, but is not to be construed in such a manner as to require that the same ratio or number of shares of such parent corporation or Acquiring Entity be issued, paid or delivered in exchange for or in respect of the shares of each class of Company Common Stock.

EXHIBIT A - 2

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THIRD AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THIRD AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT (this "<u>Amendment</u>"), dated as of August 10, 2015, is entered into by and among Eagle Materials Inc., as the Borrower, the Lenders party hereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as the Administrative Agent, Issuing Bank and Swingline Lender. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Credit Agreement referenced below.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Lenders and the Administrative Agent are parties to a Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of October 30, 2014 (the "<u>Existing Credit Agreement</u>" and as may be amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time (including by this Amendment), the "<u>Credit Agreement</u>");

WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested that the Lenders and the Administrative Agent agree to certain amendments to the Existing Credit Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Lenders party hereto and the Administrative Agent have agreed to such amendments on the terms and conditions set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises set forth above, the terms and conditions contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows:

Section 1. <u>Amendments to Existing Credit Agreement</u>. Subject to the satisfaction of the conditions precedent set forth in <u>Section 2</u> below, the parties hereto agree that the Existing Credit Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

(a) The definition of "<u>Change in Control</u>" appearing in <u>Section 1.01</u> of the Existing Credit Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirely to read as follows:

"<u>Change in Control</u>" means (a) the acquisition of ownership, directly or indirectly, beneficially or of record, by any Person or group (within the meaning of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the rules of the SEC thereunder as in effect on the date hereof), of Equity Interests representing 50% or more of the aggregate ordinary voting power represented by the issued and outstanding Equity Interests of the Borrower; or (b) occupation of a majority of the seats (other than vacant seats) on the board of directors of the Borrower by Persons who were neither (i) nominated, appointed or approved by the board of directors of the Borrower nor (ii) appointed by directors so nominated, appointed or approved.

Section 2. <u>Conditions of Effectiveness</u>. This Amendment shall become effective on the date hereof (the "<u>Amendment No. 1 Effective Date</u>") upon the satisfaction of the following conditions precedent:

(a) The Administrative Agent shall have received counterparts to this Amendment, duly executed by each of the Borrower, the Required Lenders and the Administrative Agent.

(a)

ACTIVE 209512847v.4

(b) The Administrative Agent shall have received payment of the Administrative Agent's and its affiliates' fees and reasonable out-of-pocket expenses (including reasonable out-of-pocket foes and expenses of counsels for the Administrative Agent) in connection with this Amendment and the other Loan Documents, and for which invoices have been presented at least one (1) Business Day prior to the Amendment No. 1 Effective Date, in each case, to the extent payment is required by Section 9.03(a) of the Credit Agreement.

Section 3. <u>Representations and Warranties of the Borrower</u>. The Borrower hereby represents and warrants as follows:

(a) This Amendment has been duly executed and delivered by it and constitutes its legal, valid and binding obligation, enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium or other laws affecting creditors' rights generally and subject to general principles of equity, regardless of whether considered in a proceeding at law or in equity.

(b) Immediately after giving effect to this Amendment, the representations and warranties of the Borrower set forth in the Credit Agreement are true and correct in all material respects (except for any representation and warranty that is qualified by materiality or reference to Material Adverse Effect, which such representation and warranty shall be true and correct in all respects), on and as of the date hereof, except to the extent any such representation or warranty is stated to relate solely to an earlier date, in which case such representation or warranty is true and correct in all material respects (except for any representation and warranty that is qualified by materiality or reference to Material Adverse Effect, which such representation and warranty that is qualified by materiality or reference to Material Adverse Effect, which such representation and warranty shall be true and correct in all respects to the earlier date.

(c) Immediately before and after giving effect to this Amendment, no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing.

Section 4.

Effect on Credit Agreement.

(a) Upon the effectiveness of this Amendment, on and after the date hereof, each reference in the Credit Agreement to "this Agreement," "hereof," "herein" or words of like import shall mean and be a reference to such Agreement, as amended and modified hereby.

(b) Except as specifically amended and modified above, the Credit Agreement and all other documents, instruments and agreements executed and/or delivered in connection therewith shall remain in full force and effect, and are hereby ratified and confirmed.

(c) The execution, delivery and effectiveness of this Amendment shall neither, except as expressly provided herein, operate as a waiver of any right, power or remedy of the Administrative Agent or any Lender, nor constitute a waiver of any provision of the Credit Agreement or any other documents, instruments and agreements executed and/or delivered in connection therewith.

Section 5. <u>GOVERNING LAW</u>. THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

Section 6. <u>Headings</u>. Section headings in this Amendment are included herein for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part of this Amendment for any other purpose.

Section 7. <u>Counterparts</u>. This Amendment may be executed by one or more of the parties to this Amendment on any number of separate counterparts and all of said counterparts taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. A facsimile or PDF copy of any signature hereto shall have the same effect as the original thereof.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally blank.]

2

ACTIVE 209512847v.4

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been duly executed as of the day and year first above written.

EAGLE MATERIALS INC., as the Borrower

By: <u>/s/ D. Craig Kesler</u> Name: D. Craig Kesler Title: Executive Vice President - Finance and Administration and Chief Financial Officer

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., as Administrative Agent, the Issuing Bank, the Swingline Lender and a Lender

By: <u>/s/ Maria Riaz</u> Name: MARIA RIAZ Title: VICE PRESIDENT

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.

By: <u>/s/ Jennifer Yan</u> Name: Jennifer Yan Title: Senior Vice President

By: <u>/s/ Allon K. King</u> Name: Allon K. King Title: Senior Vice President

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.

By: /s/ Andrew M. Widmer Name: Andrew M. Widmer Title: Vice President

By: _____

Name: Title:

SUNTRUST BANK

Ву: _____

Name: Title:

By: <u>/s/ Christopher Keenan</u> Name: Christopher Keenan Title: Assistant Vice President

By: <u>/s/ Mike Meredith</u> Name: Mike Meredith Title: Senior Vice President

THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY

By: /s/ John Canty Name: John Canty Title: Senior Vice President

Signature Page to Amendment No. 1 to Third A&R Credit Agreement

AMEGY BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By: /s/ Daniel L. Cox Name: Daniel L. Cox

Name: Daniel L. Cox Title: Senior Vice President

	Six Months Ended September 30,	Fiscal Year Ended March 31,					
	2015	2015	2014	2013	2012		
Earnings: (1)							
Earnings before income taxes	98,725	252,927	181,804	84,096	21,912		
Add: Fixed charges	9,350	16,631	18,171	15,791	17,769		
Add: Amortization of capitalized interest and FIN 48 Interest	268	(3,311)	1,177	945	(367)		
Add: Cash distributions from equity method investments	17,250	40,375	37,750	28,500	23,250		
Subtract: Income from equity method investments	(19,510)	(44,967)	(37,811)	(32,507)	(28,528)		
Total Earnings	106,083	261,655	201,091	96,825	34,036		
Fixed Charges: (2)							
Interest expense	8,828	15,590	17,646	15,467	17,530		
Interest component of rent expense	522	1,041	525	324	239		
Total Fixed Charges	9,350	16,631	18,171	15,791	17,769		
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges	11.3x	15.7x	11.1x	6.1x	1.9 x		

EXHIBIT 12.1

(1) Earnings represent earnings before income taxes and before income from equity method investments plus: (a) fixed charges; and (b) cash distributions from equity method investments.

(2) Fixed charges include: (a) interest expense, whether expensed or capitalized, less interest accrued for uncertain tax positions; and (b) the portion of operating rental expense which management believes is representative of the interest component of rent expense.

Certification of Periodic Report Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Steven R. Rowley, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of Eagle Materials Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures [as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)] and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: October 27, 2015

By: /s/ Steven R. Rowley Steven R. Rowley President and Chief Executive Officer

Certification of Periodic Report Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, D. Craig Kesler, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of Eagle Materials Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures [as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)] and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: October 27, 2015

By: /s/ D. Craig Kesler

D. Craig Kesler Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

Certification of Periodic Report Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Eagle Materials Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2015 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Steven R. Rowley, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge:

- (i) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: October 27, 2015

By: /s/ Steven R. Rowley Steven R. Rowley President and Chief Executive Officer

Certification of Periodic Report Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Eagle Materials Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2015 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, D. Craig Kesler, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge:

- (i) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: October 27, 2015

By: /s/ D. Craig Kesler

D. Craig Kesler Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE

Section 1503 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act contains reporting requirements regarding mine safety. The operation of our quarries is subject to regulation by the federal Mine Safety and Health Administration, or MSHA, under the Federal Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977, or the Mine Act. Set forth below is the required information regarding certain mining safety and health matters for the three month period ending September 30, 2015 for our facilities. In evaluating this information, consideration should be given to factors such as: (i) the number of citations and orders will vary depending on the size of the quarry, (ii) the number of citations issued will vary from inspector-to-inspector and mine-to-mine, and (iii) citations and orders can be contested and appealed, and in that process, may be reduced in severity and amount, and are sometimes dismissed.

Mine or Operating Name/MSHA Identification Number	104 S&S	104(b)	Citations		107(a)	Value o Asses	Dollar of MSHA asments posed	Total Number of Mining Related Fatalities	Received Notice of Pattern of Vio- lations Under Section 104(e) (yes/no)	Received Notice of Potential to Have Pattern Under Section 104(e) (yes/no)	Legal Actions Pending as of Last Day of Period	Legal Actions Initiated During Period	Legal Actions Resolved During Period
American	0	0	0	0	0	\$	0	0	no	no	0	0	0
Gypsum Company LLC Albuquerque, NM (2900181)													
American	0	0	0	0	0	\$	0	0	no	no	0	0	0
Gypsum Company LLC Duke, OK (3400256)	0		0		0	¢	200	0			0	0	
American Gypsum Company LLC Eagle, CO (0503997)	0	0	0	0	0	\$	200	0	no	no	0	0	0
Centex	0	0	0	0	0	\$	522	0	no	no	0	0	0
Materials LLC Buda, TX (4102241)													
Central Plains Cement	3	0	0	0	0	\$2	,556	0	no	no	0	0	0
Company Sugar Creek, MO (2302171)	0	0	0	0	0	.	100				2(1)	1(2)	2
Central Plains Cement Company Tulsa, OK	0	0	0	0	0	\$ 3	3,128	0	no	no	2(1)	1(2)	0
(3400026)													
Great Northern Sand Barron Co., WI (4703646)	1 I	0	0	0	0	\$ 1	1,273	0	no	no	0	0	0
Great Northern Sand LLC Barron Co.,		0	0	0	0	\$	0	0	no	no	0	0	0
WI (4703740) Illinois	0	0	0	0	0	\$	0	0	no	no	0	0	
Cement Company LaSalle, IL (1100003)													
Mountain Cement	0	0	0	0	0	\$	0	0	no	no	0	0	0
Company Laramie, WY (4800007)	0	0	0	0	0	¢	0	0			0	0	0
Mountain Cement Company Laramie, WY	0	0	0	0	0	\$	0	0	no	no	0	0	0
(4800529) Nevada	0	0	0	0	0	¢	327	0	no	no	0	0	0
Cement Company Fernley, NV (2600015)													
Northern White Sand LLC Utica, IL (1103253)	1	0	0	0	0	\$	760	0	no	no	0	0	0
IL (1103253) Northern White Sand LLC Corpus Christi, TX (4105013)	0	0	0	0	0	\$	217	0	no	no	0	0	0
Talon Concrete and Aggregates LLC Sugar Creek,	0	0	0	0	0	\$	485	0	no	no	0	0	0
MO (2302211) Western Aggregates LLC Yuba, CA (0404950)) 0	0	0	0	0	\$	0	0	no	no	0	0	0

(1) Both legal actions are penalty contests.(2) The legal action is a penalty contest.